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The Institute’s Mission

Hong Kong Securities Institute is a professional membership organisation established in 1997
for the securities & investment industry in the region.

Our Vision is:

To be the leading organisation in Greater China in promoting the standard of financial services
by offering the highest quality professional examinations and training, and most valued and
respected membership in the securities & investment industry

Our Mission is:
e To set standards of professional excellence and integrity for members and market participants,
and to provide the means of attaining them;

* To contribute to Hong Kong’s role as a leading international finance centre; and

* To broaden the membership of professionals and enhance the capabilities and reputation
of members.
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It is an honour and privilege to be able to present my first statement as
Chairman of the Hong Kong Securities Institute (HKSI). | am pleased to
report that our Institute had a successful year notwithstanding that this past
year had been extremely tough for the financial services industry and the
next twelve months appear at this juncture to be equally as challenging.

The global economy was thought to be entering a more positive phase in
the months following the banking crisis that began in 2007. There were
signs of growth, particularly from Asia, but that turned out to be short-lived.
Today the United States struggles with record debt and unemployment as do
many countries within the Euro zone. There is a danger the Euro currency
could collapse and if it does the economic shockwaves will reverberate
around the globe. In early 2011 China overtook Japan to become the world’s
second biggest economy, yet inflation remains a concern.

Now is the time for countries and organisations such as ours to look at their
internal structures and ask themselves, where can we be more efficient;
how can we improve our services; and how can we make ourselves stronger
for when the real recovery begins? Looking ahead the HKSI will continue
to manage its expenses in a prudent manner and increase efficiencies
through re-organising current systems and launching new improved services
for our members.

New Initiatives

One industry that is set to expand over the coming years is that of Private
Wealth Management (PWM). The HKSI has been working closely with several
international organisations and representatives from almost all the major
global, regional and local PWM firms to establish a set of ‘Competency
Guidelines’. These guidelines will be built around global best practices
and local requirements that are relevant to the Greater China market. The
guidelines — which we hope to launch by the end of this year - will be used
to develop a set of competency standards against which professionals can
be benchmarked and certified. We also affirmed our commitment to the
initiatives by signing an agreement with the Association of International
Wealth Management (AIWM) to become the first organisation in Asia to offer
the Certified International Wealth Manager (CIWM®) Final Examination and
its preparatory courses for professionals who are working in or interested
in joining the PWM industry.
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It will be those markets and individuals that have learned from the
experience and have positioned themselves to ride the upswing that will
reap the rewards once the recovery begins in earnest. One way in which
we can do this is to ensure that all financial services personnel and firms
are equipped with the latest in training, knowledge and accreditation.
The HKSI is placing itself to the forefront of government, regulatory and
industry development in order to ensure our members are among the first
to learn and benefit from any changes. To coincide with the launch of the
new regulatory oversight regime covering credit rating agencies on 1 June
2011, the HKSI introduced two new Licensing Examinations for Securities
and Futures Intermediaries (LE) papers on credit rating services.

Cutting edge initiatives need a communications channel through which to
deliver information in a clear and concise manner and as quickly as possible.
In July we launched our new look website that is designed to meet all the
objectives mentioned above. It is our hope the website will become the first
port of call for prospective members wanting to understand the work of the
HKSI and existing members looking for the latest industry developments.
New improved functions include an easier to use download centre with
easily accessible ‘at a glance’ downloadable forms and a ‘Communication’
area for members and guests wanting to catch up on the latest in-house
initiatives. There’s an ‘HKSI Knowledge Portal’ that allows members to
search our archive of papers and lecture notes as well as details of any
lecture series such as our recent look at the SFC Code of Conduct for
Intermediaries and the Sale of Investment Products.

Important Milestones

The HKSI continues to support professionals seeking to work in the expanding
financial services sectors of the Greater China region. We maintain a close
relationship with the Securities Association of China (SAC) in offering the
LE Paper 1 examination in the Mainland to local professionals and in May
we managed the eighth annual round of Hong Kong professionals sitting
the PRC Securities Regulations Examination. It is encouraging to note
that the number of professionals enrolling for the LE is up, which suggests
there is optimism that the industry will continue to reward those that put
in the effort and hard work.

We are stepping up efforts to expand our presence in Taiwan through a
partnership with the country’s Securities and Futures Institute (SFI), which
enabled us to deliver our first LE examination in Taiwan in March. In
addition, the HKSI was appointed to be a licensed examination preparatory
course provider for the Chartered Alternative Investment Analysts" (CAIA®)
examinations by the CAIA Association®. The agreement recognises Hong
Kong’s important role as the region’s leading asset management centre.

These major initiatives demonstrate our commitment to improving the
standing of the financial services sector in Hong Kong as well as the
professionalism of those working in the industry.
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Putting Members First

Membership expansion remains a priority for us and we aim to use the
next twelve months to both broaden and deepen our membership base.
An increasing number of member-only cocktail evenings, book launches,
seminars, tea gatherings and workshops have been introduced to encourage
networking and knowledge gathering, as well as providing an opportunity
for members to better understand the role of the HKSI. | would encourage
every member to bring a guest to one of our many open HKSI events
so they too can experience the benefits our organisation can bring to
Hong Kong and its finance professionals. Apart from organising member
events, we have begun a new Advanced Development Programme (ADP)
to provide in-depth and comprehensive programme for legal and finance
professionals.

We made major effort in promoting international networking opportunities
to our members. In April, a fact-finding mission to Thailand gave members
a platform on which to establish and broaden their network of contacts
with the country’s regulators and financial institutions.

China Partner

We recognise the increasing importance of the China market in the global
economy. Therefore it is our aim to strengthen existing ties and to build
new ones with the Mainland not only through the successful PRC Securities
Regulations Examinations, but also through our Mainland China Training
and Mainland China Executive Workshops, all of which are well received
by financial organisations operating in the region.

Nurturing Talents

Nurturing young talent is essential for the industry’s future. As such, a
total of 70 top students and graduates from the business and finance
departments of eight universities in Hong Kong received prizes in June
under the HKSI Scholarship Programme. We also reached out to potential
entrants to the financial industry through organising a number of careers
talks on university campuses. These events proved to be popular among
those university students that attended, all of whom said the talks were
useful in preparing them for entry to the industry.
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Forging Ahead

As we look forward to 2012 many of the initiatives we have launched
this year will begin to bear fruit. We expect our efforts to improve and
expand membership services will appeal to professionals working at all
levels within the industry. While executives at senior and manager level
have an important role in the development of financial services, it is at
the administrative and junior level where we will find tomorrow’s leaders
and innovators. We have pledged to support those working across all roles
and at all levels, which is why we have invested much time and effort
into expanding our qualifications portfolio. From general management to
specialised, from back office to front, the HKSI will be the ‘one-stop-shop’
organisation to which all potential and existing finance professionals turn at
each stage of their career. In addition, our events and training schedules
will be continuously updated so as to support the qualifications we offer and
developments within the industry. In short, | want the HKSI to become the
leading supplier of finance industry knowledge, qualifications, networking
events and international partnership programmes in the region.

Personal Note

It is now one year since | was appointed Chairman of the Hong Kong
Securities Institute. During those twelve months myself, my fellow board
members, the Secretariat and all staff have carried on the good work
handed on by my predecessor, Ms Barbara Shiu. | thank her and each
and every one of them for their diligence and commitment. We are at
the threshold of uncharted territory. As | outlined in my opening remarks
the global economy is in a phase of uncertainty, yet | am optimistic that
the challenges we face will be overcome in time if we meet them with
professionalism and integrity.

Thank you.
Mr Anthony YT MUH
Chairman

Hong Kong, 30 September 2011
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HKSI Roundtable Luncheon Series — Mr Martin Wheatley, JP
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HKSI Mission to Thailand
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HIGHLIGHTS

October 2010

December 2010

January 2011

February 2011

March 2011

HKSI Autumn Dinner with Prof KC Chan, SBS, JP,
Secretary for Financial Services and the Treasury as
the Principal Guest

Dr Edgar WK Cheng, GBS, JP, Founding Chairman of
the HKSI inducted as the HKSI Honorary Fellow for
2010

Holding of the Eighth Licensing Examination for Securities
and Futures Intermediaries (LE) Paper 1 Examination
simultaneously in Shanghai and Shenzhen

HKSI Executive Roundtable Luncheon with a team of
experienced legal professionals from Clifford Chance
as the principal guests

Business Ethics Forum 2010

13th HKSI Annual General Meeting

HKSI signed the Memorandum of Understanding
on Securities Training and Cooperation with the
Financial Institute of Cambodia (FIC), in Phnom Penh,
Cambodia

HKSI Annual Chairman’s Cocktail cum HKSI Outstanding
Achievers Award Presentation Ceremony

Inaugural Dinner of the Ad-hoc Committee for the
Competency Guidelines for the Private Wealth
Management Industry in Hong Kong (ACCGP) with
Prof KC Chan, SBS, JP, Secretary for Financial Services
and the Treasury as the Guest of Honour

HKSI signed the Agreement as a Preparatory Course
Provider for the Chartered Alternative Investment
AnalystsM (CAIA®) Examination with the Chartered
Alternative Investment Analyst Association®

HONG KONG SECURITIES INSTITUTE
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April 2011

May 2011

HKSI Roundtable Luncheon with Mr Charles Li, Chief
Executive of the Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing
Limited (HKEx) as the Principal Guest

Holding of the First LE Papers 1, 7 and 8 Examinations
in Taiwan

HKSI Mission to Thailand

Holding of the Eighth PRC Securities Regulations
Examination in Hong Kong

Holding of the Ninth LE Paper 1 Examination simultaneously
in Shanghai and Shenzhen

HKSI Chairman’s Dinner with Mr Ronald J Arculli, GBM,
GBS, JP, Chairman of the Hong Kong Exchanges and
Clearing Limited (HKEx) as the Principal Guest

HKSI Roundtable Luncheon with Mr Martin Wheatley,
JP, Chief Executive Officer of the Securities and Futures
Commission (SFC) as the Principal Guest

HKSI signed the agreement with the Association of
International Wealth Management (AIWM) that allows
the HKSI to offer the Certified International Wealth
Manager (CIWM) Programme

Launching of the CIWM Examination Preparatory Course
for Papers 1, 2 and 3 of the CIWM Final Examination

Publishing of the new LE Paper 4 (Regulation of Credit
Rating Services) and LE Paper 10 (Credit Rating
Services) Study Manuals (English Version)
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Publishing of the credit rating services related updates
to LE Paper 1 (Fundamentals of Securities and Futures
Regulation) and LE Paper 7 (Financial Markets) Study
Manuals (English and Chinese Versions)

June 2011 Holding of the First English Version of the LE Paper 4
and LE Paper 10 Examinations, and the First English and
Chinese Versions of the LE Papers 1 and 7 (covering
materials on credit rating services) Examinations

Seventh HKSI Scholarship Award Ceremony

Publishing of the new LE Paper 4 and LE Paper 10
Study Manuals (Chinese Version)

Re-launching of the Afternoon CPT Seminars

July 2011 Launching of the New HKSI Website

Holding of the First Chinese Version of the LE Paper
4 and LE Paper 10 Examinations

August 2011 Holding of the Second LE Papers 1, 7 and 8 in
Taiwan

September 2011 Launching of the HKSI Advanced Development Programme
(ADP)

Holding of the First CIWM Papers 1, 2 and 3 Final
Examinations

HKSI Chairman’s Dinner with Dr Eddy C Fong, GBS,
JP, Chairman of the Securities and Futures Commission
(SFC) as the Principal Guest

HONG KONG SECURITIES INSTITUTE
Annual Report 2011
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Introduction

The Report of the Board provides a summary of the activities of the Hong
Kong Securities Institute (HKSI) between 1 October 2010 to 30 September
2011 and the financial year from 1 April 2010 to 31 March 2011.

Over the past twelve months, the Institute has remained robust and resilient
in face of lingering economic uncertainty. In response to the rapidly changing
market environment, we have implemented a series of new initiatives with a
view to reinforce and diversify our services and enhance efficiency. Going
forward, we will continue to hold true to the Institute’s mission to strengthen
the capacity of our members and market practitioners to address local and
global economic challenges through our responsive approach to the latest
industry developments.

The Board met nine times during the period under review.

Change of Board Members

The HKSI's thirteenth Annual General Meeting (AGM) was held on 8
December 2010. At the meeting, Mr Anthony YT Muh was elected at the
Board Meeting as the new Chairman of the Institute, while three new and
four returning directors were also appointed.

The director appointments included Prof Simon SM Ho, Vice Rector (Academic
Affairs), University of Macau, Dr Cynthia KL Lam, Asia Head of Compliance,
Bloomberg L.P., Mr Trini CS Tsang, Director and General Manager, Wocom
Holdings Limited and Ms Anna WK Wong, Managing Director and Market
Area Head, Greater China for Private Banking, Credit Suisse AG (formerly
Chief Executive Officer, HSBC Broking Services (Asia) Limited).

In addition, three directors were appointed by the Securities and Futures
Commission (SFC) — namely, Mr Ringo KK Chiu, Managing Director and
Chief Operating Officer, CITIC Securities International Company Limited,
Miss Angelina A Kwan, Managing Director, Chief Operating Officer and
Group Executive Director, REORIENT Financial Markets Limited (formerly
Managing Director, Stratford upon Avon Finance Limited) and Ms Doris MY
Pak (from 10 December 2008 to 18 July 2011), former Director of Licensing,
the SFC. Mr Derek CF Shek, current Director of Licensing, the SFC was
appointed as the member in the Board with effect from 18 July 2011.
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The Board wishes to thank Dr Bill CP Kwok, JP, Mr Craig B Lindsay and
Ms Barbara Shiu for their contributions during their terms of office.

Build on Strength and Resiliency

Opportunities and Challenges

Almost three years after the financial tsunami, the global economy has
yet returned to its normal track. The earthquakes and tsunami that struck
Japan and the fear of radiation leak in March, the geopolitical tension in
the Middle East and North Africa, the Euro-zone debt crisis, and the US
sovereign debt rating downgrade sent shockwaves around the world, and
threatened the possibility of yet another recession.

The volatility of the external environment created ripple effects that saw
the Hong Kong Hang Seng Index plummeted to 17,407 on 26 September
2011; and coupled with an over-heated property market, our latest inflation
rate rose to over 6 percent by the end of September 2011. The year 2011
also saw a number of new measures being introduced into our financial
industry, such as the implementation of the new credit rating services
regime, an investor protection measure by the Securities and Futures
Commission (SFC); and the extension of the market trading hours by the
Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited (HKEXx).

Develop Diversities and Robustness

During the reporting period, we proceeded with the implementation of the
HKSI 3-Year Strategic Plan that aims at strengthening the Institute from
different perspectives. Through experience and insights gained from our
2009 crisis, we understand the need to build on strength and robustness,
to prepare ourselves as well as our industry practitioners for challenges
ahead when the next crisis emerges.

As a leading professional organisation that represents the interest of the
financial industry, we continue with our endeavour to enhance the capability
of our industry, and we have lined up new initiatives and plans, to reach out
to more segments of the financial industry, some of these initiatives were
still in the early stage, while some have already been rolled out in 2011.
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During the reporting year, we have set up a special Ad-hoc Committee for
the Competency Guidelines for the Private Wealth Management Industry
in Hong Kong (ACCGP) to help develop a set of competency standards
for the Private Wealth Management (PWM) sector. The ACCGP includes
senior representatives from almost all of the major global, regional and local
PWM firms in Hong Kong. Currently there is no industry wide acceptable
standards for private wealth management in Hong Kong. This new initiative
aligns with the mission and the new 3-Year Strategic Plan of the HKSI.
We anticipate the competency guidelines and standards will be ready in
2012. In parallel with the competency guidelines, the Institute has signed
an agreement with the Association of International Wealth Management
(AIWM) in May 2011, that allows the HKSI to offer the Certified International
Wealth Manager (CIWM) Programme in Hong Kong.

Professional Examinations

Corresponding with the SFC’s announcement of the new regime for credit
rating agencies (CRAs), the first HKSI Licensing Examinations on Credit
Rating Services was held in June 2011. As an examinations provider, we
have especially developed two entirely new sets of LE papers and study
manuals for credit rating services; as well as updated the materials relating
to credit rating services in our existing LE study manuals for this purpose.
The HKSI LE CRAs papers and manuals were the first of its kind in the
financial industry. The revision of the existing ten HKSI LE study manuals
is well under way. We have, so far, completed the revision and published
five of the existing LE study manuals, and we expect that the remaining
other five LE papers would be ready in 2012.

We are also pleased to report that as of October 2011, all our twelve HKSI
study manuals would be available in electronic format (E-Study Manuals),
and all candidates enrolling for the LE papers can enjoy the flexibility of
downloading the respective study manuals directly from our website once
they completed enrolments for the LE examinations.

Consistent with our Strategic Plan to grow the HKSI business and activities
in the Greater China region, the First and Second LE Papers 1, 7 and 8
Examinations in Taiwan were held in March and August 2011 respectively.
In accordance with the reciprocal arrangement under the Closer Economic
Partnership Arrangement (CEPA), the Eighth PRC Securities Regulations
Examination was held in Hong Kong in May 2011, and the Ninth and
Tenth LE Paper 1 Examinations were held in Shenzhen and Shanghai
simultaneously in May and August 2011 respectively.
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During the reporting period, two sessions of the Certified International
Investment Analyst® (CIIA®) Final Examination were held in March and
September; and the first CIWM Papers 1, 2 and 3 Final Examinations were
held in September 2011. We have held one round of the Professional Diploma
in Financial Markets (PDFM) Examination for all the 7 modules in January
and another round of PDFM Examination for Modules 1, 2, 3, 6 and 7 in
July. The PDFM Examinations for Modules 4 and 5 will be held in coming
October 2011. We have also continued offering the MPF Intermediaries
Examination (MPF) for individuals wishing to register as MPF Intermediaries
with the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Authority (MPFA).

Professional Education and Training

As a leading training provider in Hong Kong, the HKSI is recognised by the
SFC, the MPFA, the Office of the Commissioner of Insurance (OCI) and
the Law Society of Hong Kong as an approved Continuous Professional
Training (CPT)/Continuous Professional Development (CPD) course provider,
and we have allied with a number of local and overseas universities and
professional bodies in offering certificate programmes for practitioners and
potential practitioners in the financial industry.

During the year under review, we have offered a wide range of CPT and CPD
courses to our practitioners. Over 360 CPT/CPD courses were held during
the year, and a variety of new topics, including topics on derivatives, equity,
financial planning, fixed income and debts, risk management; and regulatory
and compliance, have been added to our existing CPT/CPD courses to
enhance capabilities and prepare our practitioners for the new regulatory,
governmental, legal and compliance requirements and changes.

In line with our new initiative for the PWM Industry, we have launched,
in May 2011, the first CIWM Examination Preparatory Courses. These
preparatory courses were held intensively during the weekends to cater
for the busy schedules of professionals in the PWM industry.

Demands for the HKSI tailor-made in-house training for individual financial
services organisations remained stable during the year. We have received
new and repeated requests for in-house training courses in Shanghai, Beijing,
Korea, Singapore, Taiwan and Macau during the year under review.

HONG KONG SECURITIES INSTITUTE
Annual Report 2011

AN A = A RUA BB T
T 3 B % G M 45 20 AT BlE(C LI A®) 0 7% 25 3t
A T AR LT AT T UCRE B A
B — - B T R R MR — A
BAT T — Sy A A b R R T T 8 2
FEXEEH - WREARGTT N L EEE

NN N TPy L L3S
S T B 0 P % T 1 4 BT B O
BT =% — b BT o RIS

S A R 4 R A IR (RE 4 R ) 4R A1k 0 A
PN ANBRCRRTE) > DVEA ZRE MR A
iR NN i &

HEHT I

ERAEENTEERIKE 2endEe -
BB SR~ R o B T (R B R ) % 7 o R
ALY R A E BRI R A A S TR R AR
AR - T FR AP B2 25 (] A% 3t T 3 b K 22 D
Do M SE % B A6 45 MR BRAR > 1) < R SR I 1 6
B RA BT EE RIS ERE -

FRA AR AF BN e B R — RS R
SRR P RRAE o A AL 4F L N 3L EBRAT TR
360 7 AP S 2L B 5 A A R B R AR - 3
M M > AFEA AT A TE - RE
B R W L R0 JEUBR
Fe B B ML THD D ORT T A BUA R A
SERRHI e A A CE B RERAR o Sy B A B
B ~ B - B R 07 TR K€ i e
i RIEEBER D -

A RENR A AT &
A = % — — AR T Ak O R R B e
I SR R AR o T 2% L 5 AN B R B R
FTEMENB MBI AT B MR
37 S LR e

AR TE o 1 3 2 L 3t 058 0 R
AT 06 24 0 7 B 0 R TR - A R
WA 4R L L TR BRI R
218 T T T A O
B K -



Report of the Board for 2011
TR EEEFR R

For our training activities in Mainland China, we have conducted a total
of over 100 China executive workshops, training programmes and courses
for major banks and financial institutions in Hong Kong, Greater China,
Beijing and beyond, during the reported period. We have also participated
in the SmartHK Exhibition, organised by the Hong Kong Trade Development
Council, in Guangzhou, in May 2011. The exhibition provided a very good
opportunity to showcase our training services to individuals, practitioners
and firms in the financial industry in China.

During the reporting period, we have signed a Memorandum of Understanding
(MOU) on Securities Training and Cooperation with the Financial Institute
of Cambodia (FIC) in January, and an agreement as a preparatory course
provider for the Chartered Alternative Investment Analysts" (CAIA®)
Examination with the CAIA Association®in May 2011. We have in existence,
a training collaboration MOU with an organisation in Vietnam, a collaborative
agreement with the Chinese Gold and Silver Exchange Society in offering
the Certificate in Gold and Silver Markets Programme to traders, accounting
executives and registered managers in the industry; as well as training
collaborative agreements/MOUs with various universities and professional
bodies, in offering certificates and training programmes designed for existing
and potential practitioners, and preparatory courses for candidates of the
HKSI examinations.

Membership Services

As a professional membership association, we are committed to broaden our
membership of professionals and enhance the capabilities and reputation
of members. We have completed a review of our membership services and
come up with a new Membership Strategy during early 2011; and following
the adoption of the Membership Strategy we have included and organised
more members’ exclusive activities and privileges to cater for the different
interests of members. The Institute will also be introducing a new set of
HKSI Membership Structure and Requirements by the end of 2011.

During the period under review, we have added Dymocks K11 to the HKSI
existing list of affiliated bookstores that provide discount offers and promotion
to our members. To facilitate the needs and momentum of our members,
a free WiFi access point has been installed at the HKSI reception area in
mid 2011 for members using mobile devices outside their offices.
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In December 2010, the American Express (AE) Affinity Card has hosted an
Affinity Professional Networking Event for their AE Affinity Card partners. Our
members were invited to join the events and mingle with the professionals
of the 2 other AE Affinity Card partners — the CPA Australia and the Hong
Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries (HKICS).

ANew Members Welcome Cocktail with a wine appreciation session sponsored
by Pieroth, was held in August. The event provided an opportunity for our
new members to come and mingle with our Board and Committee Members
and meet with old and new members. A Smart Drive Gathering has been
organised for members interested in driving. During the gathering experts
from Lexus gave an update of the latest hybrid model and technology,
and participants at the event will be invited to join a private car preview
session scheduled to be held towards the end of 2011. We have held
our first Cantonese non-CPT seminar entitled ‘China Highrail Property
Investment’ in September 2011, and have scheduled a golf event in our
list of coming exclusive activities for members.

During the reporting periods, we have also hosted career talks in all the
nine local universities and higher education institutions.

Our Founding Chairman, Dr Edgar WK Cheng, GBS, JP was inducted as
the HKSI Honorary Fellow for 2010 in recognition for his contributions to
the financial industry at the Autumn Dinner in 2010. Forthcoming, Mrs Laura
M Cha, GBS, JP, will be inducted as the HKSI Honorary Fellow for 2011.

Professional Events

Along with our aim to build diversities and robustness, we have restructured
and expanded the HKSI events product mix, to reach out to practitioners
working in more segments of the financial industry.

Following the hosting of our Autumn Dinner, in October, our Fifth HKSI
Business Ethics Forum that aims at promoting business ethics and integrity
in the financial industry was successfully held in early December 2010.

In view of global growing interests in the Asian emerging markets, the
HKSI has organised a Delegation to Thailand for members and market
practitioners in April 2011. This 2-day visit received positive feedback from
both the Hong Kong participants and our Thailand counterparts.
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To cope with changes in the market due to the implementation of the new
trading hours, the Institute has moved forward the HKSI Regular In-house
Luncheon CPT seminars (CPT seminars) by half an hour from March 2011,
and we have also re-launched our afternoon CPT seminars in June 2011,
so as to give practitioners a convenient and flexible alternative to our
regular lunchtime seminars.

Consistence with our practice, the Institute hosted professional development
events in different formats to meet the different needs of the financial
industry throughout the reporting year. Our Executive Roundtable Luncheon
(ERL), Roundtable Luncheon, Chairman’s Dinner, Chairman’s Cocktail,
executive briefing sessions, and talks delivered by principal guests, like
Prof KC Chan, SBS, JP, Secretary for Financial Services and the Treasury;
Dr Eddy C Fong, GBS, JP and Mr Martin Wheatley, JP of the SFC; Mr
Ronald J Arculli, GBM, GBS, JP and Mr Charles Li of the HKEx all provided
invaluable networking opportunities and insights for our guests, members
and practitioners in the industry.

During the year under review, new programme series and timely updates
have been added to our CPT seminars from time to time, such as topics
on RMB internationalisation, covered bonds, personal data privacy, global
economic dynamic, property market, retail fund regulation, Japanese equity
market, role of nuclear power in Hong Kong, retail fund regulation, gold
demand and ETFs, etc.

Coming, we will be holding the first session of our HKSI Advanced Development
Programme (ADP) for the market in October. The ADP is a new stream of
HKSI initiative that aims at providing in-depth and comprehensive updates
in regulatory, legal and compliance developments for professionals in the
financial field. A few other new programme series are also in the pipeline,
and some of these like the Putonghua Series, the Private Banking Series,
etc, will have been rolled out by the time this issue of the HKSI Annual
Report were published.
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Communications

Since launching the HKSI Career Centre and the online HKSI Research
Repository, that provide access to a wide range of information through which
users can share articles and papers about the financial and banking industry
from our website last year, after over a year of preparation and vigorous
testing, our Internet Strategy — Phase | Project has been completed, and
the HKSI new website was finally launched on 4 July 2011. The revamped
website included more professional layouts, more search functions, and more
user-friendly navigation that allow visitors and users of the HKSI website
downloading, input or update web content in a more efficient manner.
As mentioned earlier, a free WiFi access point has been installed at our
reception area in mid 2011, to provide a timely means of communication
for our members using mobile device outside their offices. Going forward
we have planned to launch a social media platform in early 2012.

Mainland and Overseas Relations

Following the signing of the Licensing Examinations for Securities and
Futures Intermediaries in Taiwan Agreement with the Securities and
Futures Institute (SFI) end September last year, the HKSI has entered
into a MOU on securities training and cooperation with the FIC, an
agreement as a preparatory course provider for the CAIA® Examination
with the CAIA Association®, and another agreement with the AIWM that
allows the HKSI offering the CIWM Programme in Hong Kong, during the
reporting period.

We have maintained pleasant collaboration relationships with our counterparts
the SFI, the Securities Association of China (SAC) and the Korean Securities
Dealers Association (KSDA). The HKSI is a member of the Association of
Certified International Investment Analysts (ACIIA) and a member of the
Asian Securities and Investments Federation (ASIF). We are the hosting
society of the ASIF 2011 AGM and Executive Committee Meeting this
coming October.

Corporate Social Responsibilities and Commitment

Grooming Talents and our Next Generation

A number of HKSI Career Talks were conducted at the nine local universities
campuses, various higher education institutions, and at the HKSI Training
Centre. Each talk was held with a senior practitioner of our ranks partnering
with the Chief Executive of the HKSI to share their real life experience with
the potential entrants of the Industry. Our objective is to reach out and
provide an overview on the career prospect in the local finance industry
for the university graduates.

HONG KONG SECURITIES INSTITUTE
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We have continued with our effort to help groom the talents of our industry.
Our LE Achievers Award Ceremony for outstanding achievers in the Licensing
Examination for Securities and Futures Intermediaries (LE) and our HKSI
Scholarship Award Ceremony for university students in business and finance
were successfully held in February and June 2011 respectively.

Green Initiatives

It has always been our endeavour to build a green environment. Having
successfully rolled out the HKSI LE Study Manuals in electronic format (E-
Study Manuals) in phases, in October last year, we are proud to report that
the full migration of all the HKSI LE study manuals to electronic format would
be accomplished by this coming October 2011. The E-Study Manual is just
another green effort of the Institute, in addition to our on-line enrolments,
computer-based examinations, electronic annual CPT certificates and
electronic evaluation forms, in building a paperless environment.

Administrative Support

To sustain high quality and reliable services, as well as stringent control on
costs and operational efficiency, we have renovated the training facilities at
the HKSI, and have upgraded our office information systems infrastructure
and restructured our internal work flow.

During the reporting period, we have also reinstated the HKSI staff training
allowance that was lifted during the financial crisis. At the same time, we
have introduced a new policy that required each staff member to take a
minimum of five CPT training hours per year. On top of that, to improve the
competencies of our Secretariat, talks on the latest regulatory and statutory
developments, such as personal data privacy, have been arranged for all
staff to attend. As an open and transparent organisation, we communicate
information about the Institute’s latest development and maintain dialogues
with our staff through our regular Town Hall Meeting.

Moving Forward

The Institute is currently implementing various initiatives under the HKSI
3-Year Strategic Plan, in particular, the Competency Guidelines for the
PWM industry. We will continue to improve efficiency in operations and
constantly review our proficiency in our risk management system, as well
as renew our facilities and enhance our service qualities. Moving forward,
we will continue to develop diversities and expand the spectrum of our
services to cater for the needs of our financial industry.
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Executive Committee

The Executive Committee, chaired by Ms Barbara Shiu (from 1 October
2010 to 8 December 2010) and Mr Anthony YT Muh (since 8 December
2010) met nine times during the reporting period. The major function of
the Committee is to monitor the progress on the implementation of the
Board’s policies and decisions and to act in the capacity of the Board in
the conduct of the ordinary business of the Institute.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee, chaired by Mr George KL Hongchoy (from 22
January 2010 to 8 December 2010) and Ms Samantha SY Ho (from 24
January 2011), met once on 15 July 2011 to review the audited accounts.
The Audit Committee met on an ad hoc basis and was responsible to
the Board in connection with review the internal control procedures and
auditing matters.

Examinations Committee

The Examinations Committee met five times in the past year to consider
issues relating to the design, development and maintenance of quality
examinations for the industry. Chaired by Mr Colin S Shaftesley, the committee
has made significant contributions to the review and enhancement of the
Licensing Examination for Securities and Futures Intermediaries (LE) and
other examinations offered by the HKSI.

New LE Papers for Credit Rating Agencies

In response to the new regulatory oversight regime over the credit rating
agencies commencing on 1 June 2011, the HKSI successfully launched
two new examination papers, LE Paper 4 (Regulation of Credit Rating
Services) and LE Paper 10 (Credit Rating Services) and included questions,
some of which had to be developed, in its existing examination papers, LE
Paper 1 (Fundamentals of Securities and Futures Regulation) and/or LE
Paper 7 (Financial Markets) to cover materials on credit rating services
in early June 2011.

To help candidates prepare for the examinations, the HKSI also published
two new study manuals for LE Papers 4 and 10 and the updates of study
manuals for LE Papers 1 and 7 relating to the provision of credit rating
services in early May 2011.
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Revision of the LE Study Manuals

In response to the feedback from the market and LE candidates, the HKSI
has taken steps to enhance the quality of all LE study manuals by engaging
external consultants to conduct an update and revision exercise with the
assistance of ad hoc working groups comprising market and industry
practitioners who have offered their services on a voluntary basis.

The HKSI has been revising the first-edition LE study manuals and publishing
their second edition progressively. So far, five of the ten first-edition study
manuals have been revised and their second edition published. The second-
edition study manuals for the remaining five LE papers will be published
as and when ready.

E-Study Manuals

In order to contribute to a ‘green’ environment and provide flexibility for
candidates, the HKSI launched a system on 7 October 2010 to provide
E-Study Manuals for the LE progressively. E-Study Manuals are now
available for all twelve LE papers. Candidates enrolling for the LE papers
can enjoy the flexibility of downloading the respective E-Study Manuals
via the ‘View Candidate History’ page of the HKSI Online Registration
and Enrolment System during the period from the enrolment date to the
examination date of the relevant examinations.

Computer Based Examinations for the LE

The HKSI introduced the LE in 2003. To provide more flexibility and
better service to its LE candidates, the HKSI launched its computer-based
examinations (CBE) in November 2009. During the past year, 97 percent
of examinations were held in CBE mode.

Holding the LE in the Mainland

Under the Closer Economic Partnership Arrangement (CEPA), the HKSI
continues to offer the LE Paper 1 examination in the Mainland to local
professionals (defined as PRC nationals possessing valid securities or
futures practising qualifications in the Mainland). The Securities Association
of China (SAC) administers the examination in the Mainland on the HKSI’s
behalf.

LE in the Taiwan

In order to strengthen exchanges and co-operation with the finance industry
in Taiwan, the HKSI has partnered with the Securities and Futures Institute
(SFI) to introduce the LE in Taiwan. The first examinations administered
by the SFI, were Papers 1, 7 and 8 held in March 2011.
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PRC Securities Regulations Examination

In a reciprocal arrangement under CEPA, the PRC Securities Regulations
Examination is offered by the SAC to Hong Kong professionals (defined as
Hong Kong permanent residents holding or having held within the past three
years a relevant licence issued by the Securities and Futures Commission
(SFC)) wishing to obtain securities and futures industry qualifications for
the Mainland. The HKSI has been assigned by the SAC as the sole agent
for handling the enrolment of Hong Kong professionals for the examination
and for the administration of the examination in Hong Kong.

HKSI Professional Diploma in Financial Markets (PDFM)

The HKSI continues to offer the PDFM, an advanced level comprehensive
industry examination, with a view to helping practitioners fulfil their lifelong
learning goals and licensing requirements.

In order to offer a high degree of flexibility and allow PDFM Students to
prepare well for the PDFM Examinations, the HKSI divided the PDFM
Examination Sessions into four sessions per year commencing July 2011.
Modules 1, 2, 3, 6 and 7 would be conducted in January and July of each
year and Modules 4 and 5 would be conducted in April and October of
each year.

MPF Intermediaries Examination

The HKSI offers the MPF Intermediaries Examination (MPF) monthly for
individuals wishing to register as MPF intermediaries with the Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes Authority (MPFA).

Certified International Wealth Manager (CIWM) Final
Examination

The CIWM is an advanced, internationally recognised education programme
for experienced professionals in the wealth management industry. The
qualification is awarded by the Association of International Wealth
Management (AIWM), an international professional organisation for wealth
managers, portfolio managers, investment advisors, asset managers and
trust and estate practitioners worldwide.

The CIWM was launched in Switzerland in 2004 and later in other European
countries, including the United Kingdom. In cooperation with the AIWM, the
HKSI is the sole provider of the CIWM Final Examination and its preparatory
course in Hong Kong. In September 2011, the HKSI successfully launched
the first intake of the CIWM Final Examination.
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Certified International Investment Analyst (CIIA) Final
Examination

The HKSI is a Contracting Member of the Association of Certified International
Investment Analysts (ACIIA). As of September 2011, 34 national/regional
associations from Asia, Europe and Latin America joined the ACIIA and
more nations are expected to join in future.

Statistics for Professional Examinations (Appendix A)

Licensing Examination for Securities and Futures Intermediaries (LE)
During the past year, 36 PBE examination sessions and 1,108 CBE
sessions were held with a total number of 38,693 enrolments from 17,089
candidates. Papers 1, 7, and 8 continued to show the highest enrolment
figures amongst the 12 LE papers, with 33,617 enrolments or more than
87 percent of the total number of LE enrolments. The overall average pass
rate for the LE was 62 percent.

HKSI Professional Diploma in Financial Markets (PDFM)

Two examination sessions (in January and July 2011) for PDFM Modules
1,2, 3, 6 and 7 and one examination session (in January 2011) for PDFM
Modules 4 and 5 were held during the past year. There were a total of
115 enrolments for the seven PDFM Modules, of which 105 candidates
enrolled via the Examination-only (EO) mode and ten enrolled via the
Training and Examination (TE) mode. The average pass rates of the seven
PDFM Modules under the EO mode and the TE mode were 32 percent and
70 percent respectively. The overall average pass rate for the programme
was 36 percent.

As of 30 September 2011, there were 402 students registered for the
PDFM.

Licensing Examination for Securities and Futures Intermediaries
(Paper 1) in the Mainland

Under CEPA, the HKSI offered its eighth and ninth LE Paper 1 examinations
in Shanghai and Shenzhen on 23 October 2010 and 21 May 2011 respectively.
There were a total of 2,871 enrolments and 2,031 attendees, representing
an attendance rate of 71 percent. Of these, 983 candidates passed the
examination, representing an average pass rate of 48 percent.
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Licensing Examination for Securities and Futures Intermediaries
(Papers 1, 7 and 8) in Taiwan

Two examination sessions for LE Papers 1, 7 and 8 (in March and August
2011) were held in Taipei during the past year. There were a total of 117
enrolments for the three papers. Out of the 102 candidates who attended,
66 passed the examinations. The overall pass rate for the LE Papers 1,
7 and 8 was 65 percent.

Eighth PRC Securities Regulations Examination

The eighth PRC Securities Regulations Examination was held in Hong
Kong on 21 May 2011. A total of 20 Hong Kong professionals enrolled
for the examination, of whom 16 candidates attended, representing an
attendance rate of 80 percent.

MPF Intermediaries Examination (MPF)

A total of 12 examination sessions were held during the past year with
174 enrolments. Out of the 149 candidates who attended, 93 passed the
examination, representing an average pass rate of 62 percent.

Certified International Wealth Manager (CIWM) Final Examination
The first CIWM Final Examination Papers 1, 2 and 3 were held in September
2011. There were a total of five enrolments for the three papers, of whom
three candidates attended, representing an attendance rate of 60 percent.
The marking of the September 2011 examination papers is still in progress
and the results will be released in December 2011.

Certified International Investment Analyst (CIIA) Final Examination
The CIIA Final Examination, comprising Exam 1 and Exam 2, was held
twice in the past year. In the March 2011 session, four candidates out of
the seven who enrolled for Exam 1 and three candidates out of the five who
enrolled for Exam 2, attended the respective examinations. The pass rates
of Exam 1 and Exam 2 were 25 percent and 0 percent respectively.

In the September 2011 session, there were eight enrolments for Exam 1
and nine enrolments for Exam 2. Six candidates attended Exam 1 and
six candidates attended Exam 2. The marking of the September 2011
examination papers is still in progress and the results will be released in
December 2011.

As of 30 September 2011, there were 76 CIIA Registered Candidates in
Hong Kong and a total of 47 candidates attained the CIIA designation.
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Membership Committee

Mr Peter SH Wong chaired the Membership Committee from January 2011
onwards. The Committee is responsible to the Board for issues relating to
the eligibility and discipline of members. It also oversees the recruitment
and retention strategies for both individual and corporate membership.
During the report period, the Committee met for six times and initiated a
number of ideas and member-only programmes, formulated the membership
strategies to recognise long time supporting members and to attract young
practitioners to join our rank.

Disciplinary Case

During the report period, the Committee reviewed one disciplinary case.
Appropriate action was taken according to the Membership Rules. A letter
of notification was sent to the member highlighting that the disciplinary
action by the authority would be recorded in the member’s file; which would
be drawn as reference when it comes to matters relating to his/her HKSI
membership in the future.

Membership Strategy

Since its establishment, the Institute has striven hard to uphold its vision
and mission through a number of groundbreaking achievements including
the three key areas of Professional Qualification, International Relations,
and Contribution to Industry with Membership Development as the focal
point providing customers, supporters and leaders to the three key areas
of the Institute.

With an average age of 48, our individual members are shifting their
professional needs from training to networking and recognition. About 70
percent of members may reach the year for retirement in the next 5 to 10
years. There is an urgent need to recruit new members from the young
segment in order to sustain the membership development of the HKSI.

Under the direction of the Committee, a 10-point Membership Strategy for
the next three years was drafted and submitted to the Board for review
and was accepted in July 2011. The Strategy aimed at:

* Informing the community about the HKSI and our value proposition;

+  Attracting new members to the HKSI from a wide base;

+ Retaining existing members; and

*  Reforming the way in which members engage with each other in the
HKSI.
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Below are the highlights of the 10-point strategy:

1. Celebrating success, by developing a repository of ‘good practices
and member profiles’ for reference by members seeking role models
and/or continuous improvement. Senior members would be invited to
share their success stories.

2. A resource pack for all members to empower them and make them
feel confident in talking to their friends, and the wider community,
about HKSI Membership, thereby raising awareness and membership
enquiry.

3. Develop an OutReach Programme with schedule of events or activities
aimed at informing both the finance community and all of our membership
about the direction and programmes being developed and delivered
by the HKSI.

4. Streamlining of the Membership Department to dedicate managers and
support staff to work exclusively for the HKSI members and facilitate
improved membership service and amenity.

5. Review and improve member enquiry and feedback processes to
more immediately and appropriately meet members’ needs. In the
next generation of Membership MIS, online renewal and application
would be provided. Besides, the social media initiative would also be
considered as it facilitates a quick and interactive experience between
members and the HKSI or between members.

6. Develop mentoring guidelines and programmes to utilise the individual
skills of members in mentoring and supporting each other.

7. Further develop and improve methods of internal and external
communications including e-newsletters, e-forums, blog, website and
its member intranet.

8. Building a base of membership by widening membership to all individuals
of the qualifying communities identified

9. Target marketing to China-based firms and finance practitioners who
are or will be working in Hong Kong.

10. Recruiting members from the top

Progress of the implementation of the Membership Strategy will be reported
to the Board and Membership Committee from time to time.

Celebrating Success - Induction of Honorary Fellow and
Fellows

The Institute was honoured to induct Mrs Laura M Cha, GBS, JP, Director
of HSBC Holdings plc, as the HKSI Honorary Fellow for 2011.
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Mrs Cha was appointed a Director of HSBC Holdings plc with effect from
1 March 2011. She is non-executive Deputy Chairman of The Hongkong
and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited and a non-executive Director
of the HKEXx.

Mrs Cha is a Hong Kong delegate to the 11th National People’s Congress
of China, a non-official member of the Executive Council of Hong Kong
SAR, Vice-Chairman of the International Advisory Council of the China
Securities Regulatory Commission (CSRC) and Chairman of the University
Grants Committee and of the Independent Commission Against Corruption
(ICAC) Advisory Committee on Corruption in Hong Kong.

Previously, Mrs Cha served as Vice-Chairman of CSRC between 2001 and
2004. She was the first person to be invited from outside the Mainland to
serve in the Central Government of the People’s Republic of China. Before
joining CSRC, Mrs Cha had 10 years experience at Hong Kong’s SFC. Mrs
Cha has also worked in the USA where she is a member of the State Bar
of California. Mrs Cha was a Greater China regulation and policy expert.

Mrs Cha was awarded a Silver Bauhinia Star in 2001 and a Gold Bauhinia
Star in 2009 by the Hong Kong Government for her public service.

Mrs Cha, together with other new fellows, will be inducted in the HKSI
annual event Autumn Dinner in October 2011, and formed part of the most
senior membership category. A list of Honorary Fellows/Fellows is provided
at the Appendix B-1.

As of 30 September 2011, the Institute had 44 Honorary Fellows/Fellows,
1,996 Ordinary Members and 142 Affiliate Members, and the total number
of individual members reached 2,182. Details refer to Appendix B-2.

Member Engagement

As part of the Membership Strategy, the Institute launched a series of
membership activities exclusive to members and their guests, aiming to
engage members in a wider spectrum, including professional seminars,
cocktails, and interest group gatherings such as wine-tasting, car driving
and golf. The activities aimed to meet members’ professional needs as
well as to provide an open platform for them to meet other members or
guests with similar interest.

Three members’ only seminars were held during the report period.
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Former investment banker Mr Philippe Espinasse hosted a CPT-seminar
entitled ‘What Makes a Successful IPO?’ to over 150 members at HKSI
earlier this year.

In-town guest Mr Edgar Perez hosted another CPT-seminar on ‘The
Present and Future of High-Frequency Trading’ during his visit to Hong
Kong in June. The seminar was well received and covered by local and
overseas media.

Both CPT-seminars were videotaped and posted at HKSI e-learning platform.
The Putonghua version will be made and posted in October for members
or potential members who speak Putonghua mainly.

Along the same line, a China property expert Mr Stephen Sum was invited
to speak in Cantonese to our members on the hot issue ‘China Highrail
Property Investment’ in September. The seminar was well received.

According to our latest membership figures, our members come from
different segments of the finance industry. To provide a platform for them
to exchange views and networking freely, gatherings for different interest
groups were organised.

In August 2011, the Institute scheduled two gatherings for members who were
interested in wine-tasting and car driving. Renowned wine-maker Pieroth
and hybrid car maker Lexus were invited to showcase their latest products.
Members were encouraged to bring their non-member friends to come as
guests, and allow them to experience our membership activities.

The Institute also took the opportunity to invite new members and long
time supporter to join these events free of charge. This initiative created
an environment in which senior members were recognised, new members
were welcomed, and potential members were invited to join our rank. Both
events were well received.

In December 2011, the Institute will organise a ‘HKSI Golf Day 2011’ event
for golf lovers.

Reach Out Programme

In order to reach out to the potential entrants of the industry, the Institute
organised a number of career talks at the HKSI venue as well as on
various university campus. The purpose is to give an overview of the
growth and development of the industry so that students can better prepare
themselves for entry.
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During the report period, over ten career talks were held. Members Mr Paul
Day, Mr George KL Hongchoy, Dr Cynthia KL Lam, Mr John MM Williamson
and Ms Anna WK Wong were invited to join our Chief Executive to share
their personal experiences with finance students. With the strong support
and valuable contribution of the members, the talks were successfully held
and feedback was positive.

Corporate Membership

To date, there are about 163 corporate members coming from various sectors
of the industry. A breakdown by sector is provided at the Appendix B-3.

Arange of VIP programmes such as the Chairman’s Dinner and Corporate
Advisory Council meeting has been provided to the corporate members
alongside with our quality seminars and customised in-house training
programmes. These corporate members will add to the strength of the Institute
as a leading professional body representing the industry’s interests.

E-Committee

Mr Ringo KK Chiu chaired the E-Committee from March 2011 onwards. This
Committee is mainly responsible for providing input and advice regarding
the development of the web content and features in line with the Institute’s
overall communications strategy.

Internet Project

The HKSI has finished revamping the official website (www.hksi.org) that
comes with a more professional layouts and more user-friendly navigation.
In addition, the website is also facilitated with advanced functions that help
users to locate information more efficiently. Moreover, the HKSI website
is built for ‘Search Engine Optimisation’ that helps the HKSI website
appearing in a higher rank in the search engines. There is also a Content
Management System that facilitates HKSI staff to input and update web
content in a more efficient way.

Professional Events Committee

The Professional Events Committee, chaired by Miss Angelina A Kwan (from
1 October 2010 to 30 September 2011) met five times during the period.
Including the Chairman, the Committee’s membership is comprised of 14
senior industry practitioners, regulators and HKSI individual members.
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Professional Development Seminars and Regulatory Updates

The Institute maintains a comprehensive events programme featuring
senior representatives from the Financial Services and the Treasury
Bureau (FSTB), SFC, HKEx, MPFA, as well as high profile local and
international market leaders to talk on a range of topical issues. From
October 2010 to September 2011, around 60 professional events were
held, with participation of over 4,700 members and practitioners.

HKSI Roundtable Luncheon Series

The Roundtable Luncheon Series is well supported by market practitioners
and is one of the most popular corporate events for the industry. The Institute
holds a number of roundtable luncheons each year, inviting prominent market
leaders to share their views and knowledge with our members and market
practitioners. During the period, the Institute organised two roundtable
activities and was delighted to have Chief Executives from the SFC and HKEx —
Mr Martin Wheatley, JP and Mr Charles Li — as keynote speakers.

Meeting with Your Government Officials (MYGO) Series

MYGO Series aims to provide a platform for government officials and
practitioners to meet and exchange ideas. During the period, the Institute
was delighted to have Ms Carol Hui of the OCI to speak at the HKSI platform.
The talk was informative and very well received by market practitioners.

HKEx Senior Executives Series

During the period, the Institute was delighted to have Mr Bryan Chan, Mr
Kevin King, and Ms Qiumei Sophie Yang to speak at the HKSI platform.
These sessions were informative and well received.

In-town Guests Series

The In-town Guests Series has become one of members’ favourite must-
attend events. Thanks for the kind referrals from Board members and
Committee members, we were able to feature prominent in-town guest
speakers to speak at the HKSI while they were in Hong Kong. During the
period, we are delighted to feature Dr John Greenwood, OBE, Dr Cindy
Ma and Mr Jervis Smith in our event programmes.

Regional Market Update Series

The Regional Market Update Series is popular among market practitioners
and is very well received. During the period, we have covered Japan, Korea,
China as well as regional and global market outlook in general.
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Members’ Only Event

HKSI Business Ethics Forum

This is an exclusive, free, annual CPT event for members. The annual
forum provides a platform for new entrants and experienced practitioners to
meet, exchange ideas and discuss the latest development and challenges
in the field, with a view to promote business ethics and integrity among
fellow professionals.

The 5th Annual Forum was held successfully on 9 December at the HKSI
Training Centre. We had a good line up of speakers — Mr Michael Yip of
the FSTB, Mr Mark Steward of the SFC, Ms Yvonne Mui of the ICAC, Mr
Russ Harding of the Hong Kong Police Force and Mr Martin D Rogers of
Clifford Chance. The event received overwhelming support, with over 170
members registered.

Chairman’s Dinner

One of the most popular activities among corporate members is the
Chairman’s Dinner. This dinner provides a CEO-level networking opportunity
for senior representatives of member companies. Guests are invited to
meet in a relax setting to exchange ideas and views pertaining to the
financial industry in Hong Kong. Prominent industry leaders are invited to
share their vision of industry trends and development at both the regional
and global levels.

During the period, the Institute organised two Chairman’s Dinners with
over 20 corporate members invited. The Institute was honoured to have Mr
Ronald J Arculli, GBM, GBS, JP of the HKEx and Dr Eddy C Fong, GBS,
JP of the SFC as our principal guests for the dinners.

HKSI Autumn Dinner

The Institute’s Autumn Dinner was successfully held at the Hong Kong
Jockey Club on 14 October, 2010. We were delighted to have Prof KC Chan,
SBS, JP, Secretary for Financial Services and the Treasury to present a
keynote speech about the latest efforts in developing Hong Kong into a
global financial centre.

Attended by over 180 members, government officials and senior market
practitioners, the evening was well received. Guests included a mixture
of individual and corporate members.

The keynote speech was followed by an induction ceremony of the HKSI
Honorary Fellow, Dr Edgar WK Cheng, GBS, JP. HKSI Honorary fellowships
are awarded to individuals who have made distinguished contribution
to the development of the Hong Kong securities and financial services
industry.
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Also, in recognition of members’ significant contribution to the development
of the industry and the Institute, three HKSI ordinary members were also
inducted as HKSI Fellows during the same occasion. They are Dr Chow Kam
To, Richard; Mr Lee Kiu Sang, Baldwin; and Ms So Shuk Man, Tina.

Following the dinner, the Secretariat received complimentary messages
from participants congratulating the Institute on the dinner’s success and
the excellent networking opportunities provided.

HKSI Chairman’s Cocktail and HKSI Outstanding Achievers
Award Presentation Ceremony

The annual Chairman’s Cocktail cum HKSI Outstanding Achievers Award
Presentation Ceremony was successfully held on 25 February at the
HKSI Training Centre. Our Chairman, Mr Anthony YT Muh, delivered the
welcoming remarks and Chairman of the Examinations Committee, Mr Colin
S Shaftesley conducted the Outstanding Achievers Award Presentation
Ceremony.

The cocktail evening was well supported by regulators and members and
we received compliments and positive feedback from participants. Members
considered it as a perfect platform catching up with acquaintances and
meeting new friends.

HKSI Scholarship Programme Award - Presentation Ceremony

The HKSI Scholarship Programme serves to encourage and support the new
generation of finance professionals. Since the programme launched in 2004,
over 400 scholarship holders were offered to join various complimentary
HKSI training courses, professional seminars and networking functions.
The HKSI is dedicated to reach out to university students and graduates
as this group is the talent pool that will facilitate the industry’s sustainable
growth.

The seventh HKSI Scholarship Award Ceremony was successfully held on
Friday, 3 June at the HKSI Training Centre. More than 70 guests, including
the awardees, their family members and friends, and representatives from
the eight participating universities joined the ceremony. They all witnessed
the memorable and joyful moments together with the HKSI Board members
and senior management staff.
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Mr Anthony YT Muh, Chairman of the HKSI, commended the awardees’
achievements and shared with the participants that the HKSI is pleased
to provide scholarship awards to the top performers from the business
and finance departments of Hong Kong'’s universities. This Scholarship
Programme will benefit the students and graduates because it provides
them complimentary access to a variety of professional events and training
courses. Itis the Institute’s belief that learning is an ongoing process which
is essential to anyone who is keen to build a successful career.

The Scholarship Programme is an annual event and the nominations for
2011/12 will take place in the first quarter of 2012.

HKSI Mission to Thailand 2011

The HKSI Annual Mission is one of the popular networking events among
members. The purpose of the mission is to take members and market
practitioners to visit other markets within the same time zone and meet
with potential working partners and explore business opportunities.

Over the past years, the Institute has arranged delegations visiting stock
exchanges, regulators and major financial firms in Shenzhen, Shanghai,
Beijing, Kuala Lumpur, Taiwan and Korea. With the increasing interest
among both Hong Kong and international market practitioners in the growth
potentials of the Asian markets — in particular, Thailand — the Institute
organised a delegation with senior executives from the corporate and
financial sectors to visit the country during 7 and 8 April.

This year, the mission leader was Mr Anthony YT Muh, Chairman of the HKSI.
The two-day mission was very fruitful and provided a perfect platform for
senior practitioners from the two markets to meet for professional exchange.
Delegates met with senior government officials and key figures from leading
Thailand firms. Here are the highlights of the 2-day programme:

On 7 April, the delegation received a warm welcome at the Securities and
Exchange Commission by Senior Assistant Secretary-General, Director of
Investment Management Supervision Department, Director of Licensing
Department, Director of Market Supervision Department, Director of
Strategy and International Affairs Department, Director of Research and
Development Department and Director of Corporate Affairs Department.
The delegation then went onto to visit the Stock Exchange of Thailand
and Thailand Securities Institute.

In the evening, a dinner reception was held at the Four Seasons Bangkok
with Khun Pravej Ongartsittigul, Senior Assistant Secretary-General,
Securities and Exchange Commission as the principal guest. Over 50
senior representatives from the regulator and major finance firms attended
the dinner. Guests enjoyed the function and welcomed the networking
opportunities provided.
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On the next day, the HKSI senior representatives had a meeting with
the Ministry of Finance in the morning and the delegation ran on a busy
agenda and visited TISCO Securities Company Limited and TISCO Asset
Management Company Limited.

A special lunch talk was organised with Baker & McKenzie Thailand.
Mr Theppachol Kosol, partner of Baker & McKenzie shared with us his
insights on ‘How to set up a finance business in Thailand - overview of
the legal structure’.

The two-day programme received positive feedback from participants and
Thailand counterparts.

HKSI High End Events - Advanced Development Programme
(ADP)

The HKSI is well committed to provide high quality professional development
and training services. As such, the ADP is a new initiative of the Institute
with the aim to provide in-depth and comprehensive programme for legal
and finance professionals. All ADP courses will be submitted for CPD
accreditation by the Law Society of Hong Kong. It is anticipated that ADP
programme will be available in Q4 2011.

Professional Education Committee

The Professional Education Committee, chaired by Mr Anthony YT Muh
(from 22 January 2010 to 8 December 2010) and Mr Philip A Tye (from 24
March 2011), met six times during the year. The Committee is responsible
for developing the Institute’s educational and training programmes. Besides
being recognised by the Securities and Futures Commission in offering
Continuous Professional Training services for registered persons, the
Institute also was recognised by the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Authority, the Office of the Commissioner of Insurance and the Law Society
of Hong Kong in offering continuous professional development activities
for MPF, insurance intermediaries and legal practitioners.

Variety of Courses

In addition to the existing CPT/CPD Courses such as the ‘Investment-
Linked-CPD-01 to 08 Series’ for insurance intermediaries and ‘Certificate
in Gold and Silver Markets’ for gold and silver markets practitioners, the
Institute has added ‘CIWM Final Examination Preparatory Course’ and ‘CAIA®
Examination Preparatory Course’ to our array of course offerings serving
the wealth management and alternative investment sectors respectively.
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In-house Training Programme

Demands for the HKSI tailor-made in-house training from individual financial
services organisations remain stable. In addition to local training, we have
also conducted in-house training courses in Shanghai, Beijing, Korea,
Singapore, Taiwan and Macau during the year under review.

Training Programs of Mainland Financial Institutions

The Institute’s professional training service for financial institutions from the
Mainland keeps a steady growth this past year. The Institute organised 108
training courses for over 4,200 participants. Given the Mainland financial
industry is growing in a rapid pace, its thirst for talents and new financial
knowledge is overwhelming. The Institute, as a major financial training and
education provider in the industry with unique competitive advantages and
proven track record, will therefore continue to be the best partner of the
Mainland Financial Institutions for their talent development.

Continuous Professional Training Courses (CPTC)

The Institute has offered a full spectrum of courses that help practitioners
perform effectively in this rapidly evolving securities and investment market.
During October 2010 to September 2011, the Institute conducted 364 CPTC,
621 E-courses, 77 certificate programmes, 214 in-house programmes and
108 PRC executives training programmes. In all, a total of 31,651 individuals
from brokerage firms, banks, and insurance companies participated. The
most popular topics include regulatory issues of the Securities and Futures
Ordinance, regulatory and technical aspects of SFC regulated activities,
technical analysis, risk management, hedge fund investment, and bonds
and fixed income, etc.

Ad-hoc Committee for the Competency Guidelines for the Private
Wealth Management Industry in Hong Kong (ACCGP)

Chaired by Dr Bill CP Kwok, JP, the Ad-hoc Committee for the Competency
Guidelines for the Private Wealth Management Industry in Hong Kong
(ACCGP) met four times in the past year. The objective of the ACCGP is
to develop a set of competency guidelines for market practitioners who
are engaged in the Private Wealth Management Industry (PWM). The
competency guidelines will be based on global best practices and local
requirements that are relevant to the Greater China market. The HKSI
plans to launch the competency guidelines by 2012. A set of competency
standards will then be developed to certify PWM professionals.
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Report of the Board for 2011
R FEERERRE

Finance and Administration

Finance

The Financial Statements of the Institute for the year ended 31 March
2011 are set out on pages 59 to 89. The Consolidated Statement of
Comprehensive Income recorded a surplus of HK$2,382,218. Total turnover
was recorded at HK$46,280,689, consisting of income from professional
training courses HK$15,227,585, examinations HK$23,750,098, membership
HK$4,413,828, seminars HK$1,165,750 and other income (net income from
sales of publications) HK$632,058. As the HKSI is a non-profit making
organisation, the income or any surplus were mainly assigned for benefits
of members and spent on refining the quality of examination programmes,
research and financial activities in an effort to fulfil our commitments
towards to the securities industry, enhance the professional standard of
practitioners in the securities industry and maintain Hong Kong’s renowned
image of financial market.

Administration
Mr SF Wong, the Chief Executive, heads the administration of the Institute.
As end of September, the Secretariat had 57 full-time staff.

Appreciation

On behalf of the Institute, | would like to take this opportunity to express our
sincere appreciation of the distinguished leaderships of both our immediate
past Chairman Ms Barbara Shiu and current Chairman Mr Anthony YT Muh;
the devotion and commitment of our Board of Directors, and the dedication
of our Committee Members. Their unwavering support has guided the HKSI
through challenges and opportunities ahead. The Institute would also like
to thank everyone within the HKSI Secretariat for their loyalty and hard
work in ensuring the success of the HKSI over the past year.

By Order of the Board

SF WONG
Chief Executive

Hong Kong, 30 September 2011
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Executive Committee

Mr Anthony YT MUH (Chairman)
(Since 8/12/2010)

Ms Barbara SHIU

(Chairman: 10/12/2008 - 8/12/2010)
Ms Samantha SY HO

(Since 24/1/2011)

Mr George KL HONGCHOY
(16/1/2009 - 8/12/2010)

Miss Angelina A KWAN

Mr Roger KK LEE

(6/1/2007 - 8/12/2010)

Mr Craig B LINDSAY
(14/12/2005 - 8/12/2010)

Ms Doris MY PAK

(16/1/2009 - 18/7/2011)

Mr Colin S SHAFTESLEY
(Since 24/1/2011)

Mr Derek CF SHEK

(Since 18/7/2011)

Mr Philip A TYE

(Since 24/1/2011)

Mr SF WONG

Ms Rose Mary SC CHAN (Secretary)

Audit Committee

Ms Samantha SY HO (Chairman)
(Since 24/1/2011)

Mr George KL HONGCHOY
(Chairman: 22/1/2010 - 8/12/2010)
(Member: Since 24/1/2011)

Mr Ringo KK CHIU

Prof Simon SM HO

(16/1/2009 - 8/12/2010)

Miss Angelina A KWAN

Ms Doris MY PAK

(16/1/2009 - 18/7/2011)

Mr Derek CF SHEK

(Since 18/7/2011)

Ms Barbara SHIU

(16/1/2009 - 8/12/2010)

Mr Anthony YT MUH

(Since 24/1/2011)

Mr SF WONG

Mr Alex CY MAK (Secretary)

Examinations
Committee

Mr Colin S SHAFTESLEY (Chairman)

(Since 9/3/2011)

(Member: 17/1/2006 - 8/12/2010)
Mr Roger KK LEE

(Chairman: 16/1/2009 - 8/12/2010)
(Member: Since 9/3/2011)

Mr CHAN Hing Wah, Steve

Ms Julia CHARLTON

Mr Paul KK CHENG
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Mr Carl FERNANDES
Mr Gerald D GREINER
(16/1/2001 - 8/12/2010)
Mr Michael HA
(22/1/2010 - 3/5/2011)
Mr Lionel KWOK

Mr KWONG Man-Bun
Prof LAM Kin

(Since 9/3/2011)

Mr Derek CF SHEK

Ms Barbara SHIU

Mr Trini CS TSANG
(Since 9/3/2011)

Mr Richard YIN
(16/1/2009 - 8/12/2010)
Mr Anthony YT MUH
(Since 9/3/2011)

Mr SF WONG

Ms Yok Mui THAM (Secretary)

Membership Committee

Mr Peter SH WONG (Chairman)
(Since 15/3/2011)

(Member: 16/1/2009 - 8/12/2010)
Mr Craig B LINDSAY

(Chairman: 22/1/2010 - 8/12/2010)
(Member: Since 15/3/2011)

Ms Samantha SY HO

(17/1/2005 - 8/12/2010)

Prof Simon SM HO

(Since 15/3/2011)

Mr George KL HONGCHOY
(Since 15/3/2011)

Mr Stephen CC HUI

Dr Bill CP KWOK, JP

Dr Kent WL LAI

(Since 15/3/2011)

Prof LAM Kin

(8/1/2007 - 8/12/2010)

Dr Cynthia KL LAM

(Since 15/3/2011)

Mr Dannis JH LEE

Mr Lawrence KH LEE

Mr Benson TW LO

(Since 15/3/2011)

Mr Wilson WS LO

Mr Louis KF MAK

(Since 15/3/2011)

Mr Philip A TYE

(22/1/2010 - 8/12/2010)

Mr Richard D WINTER

Mr Andrew YC WONG

(Since 15/3/2011)

Ms Anna WK WONG

(22/1/2010 - 8/12/2010)

Mr Anthony YT MUH

Mr SF WONG

Ms Daisy SY LO

(Secretary: 1/11/2005 - 31/3/2011)
Mr Teddie TW CHUNG (Secretary)
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Members of Committees and Working Parties

H#EZBEGRTHEPIAZRE

Professional Education
Committee

Mr Philip A TYE (Chairman)
(Since 24/3/2011)

Mr Anthony YT MUH
(Chairman: 22/1/2010 - 8/12/2010)
(Member: Since 24/3/2011)
Mr Henry CHAN

Dr Richard CHOW

Mr Patrick CICHY

(Since 24/3/2011)

Mr Patrice CONXICOEUR
(16/1/2009 - 8/12/2010)
Mr Paul DAY

Mr Tony ESPINA
(16/1/2009 - 8/12/2010)
Prof Michael Arthur FIRTH
Prof Simon SM HO
(16/1/2009 - 8/12/2010)
Ms Yvonne HSIN

Ms Luzia HUNG

Mr Eugene KS LEE

Mr Kevin LIEM

(Since 24/3/2011)

Mr POON Chiu Kwok

Mr Jimmy PUN

Mr Gerry SCHIPPER

Ms Barbara SHIU
(16/1/2009 - 8/12/2010)
Ms Elizabeth SOON

Mr Pascal VINAIS

(Since 24/3/2011)

Mr Philip WAN

(19/1/2004 - 8/12/2010)
Dr Ronald WAN

Ms Barbara WANG
(28/1/2008 - 8/12/2010)
Mr Andrew YC WONG

Ms Anna WK WONG
(Since 24/3/2011)

Mr Peter SH WONG
(16/1/2009 - 8/12/2010)
Mr Eric CH YIP
(16/1/2009 - 8/12/2010)
Mr SF WONG

Mr Spencer CW LAU (Secretary)

Professional Events
Committee

Miss Angelina A KWAN (Chairman)
Mr Robert EJ BUNKER

Mr Bryan PK CHAN

Mr Andrew HC FUNG

Ms Samantha SY HO

Ms Christine KUNG

(Since 24/2/2011)
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Dr Cynthia KL LAM

Mr Baldwin KS LEE

Mr Martin D ROGERS

Mr Colin S SHAFTESLEY
(19/1/2006 - 8/12/2010)

Ms Barbara SHIU

(16/1/2009 - 8/12/2010)

Mr Alec YW TSUI

Mr Peter SH WONG

(Since 24/2/2011)

Mr Eric CH YIP

(Since 24/2/2011)

Mr Anthony YT MUH

(Since 24/2/2011)

Mr SF WONG

Ms Daisy SY LO

(Secretary: 1/11/2005 - 31/7/2011)
Ms Clara SM TANG (Secretary)
(Since 1/8/2011)

E-Committee

Mr Ringo KK CHIU (Chairman)
(Since 1/3/2011)
(Member: 23/2/2010 - 8/12/2010)
Mr Philip A TYE
(Chairman: 21/10/2009 - 8/12/2010)
(Member: Since 1/3/2011)
Mr Robert EJ BUNKER
Mr Joseph HL CHAN

Mr Gary WK CHEUNG

Mr HO Lic-ki

Prof Simon SM HO
(Since 1/3/2011)

Dr Bill CP KWOK, JP
(21/10/2009 - 8/12/2010)
Dr Kent WL LAl
(21/10/2009 - 8/12/2010)
Mr Roger KK LEE

Mr LI Ming Kit

Ms Alexandra DW LO

Mr John M MAGUIRE

Mr Louis KF MAK
(Since1/3/2011)

Mr Marc MORRISON
(Since1/3/2011)

Mr Colin S SHAFTESLEY
(Since1/3/2011)

Mr Stewart SC SHING
(23/2/2010 - 8/12/2010)
Ms Barbara SHIU
(21/10/2009 - 8/12/2010)
Mr Christopher PY TANG
Mr Trini CS TSANG

Ms Barbara WANG
(Since1/3/2011)
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Mr Andrew YC WONG

(21/10/2009 - 8/12/2010)

Dr Clement YP WONG

Mr Anthony YT MUH

(Since 1/3/2011)

Mr SF WONG

Ms Daisy SY LO

(Secretary: 21/10/2009 - 1/3/2011)
Mr Se Fong KAO (Secretary)
(Since 3/5/2011)

Corporate Advisory
Council

Dr AU King-lun, MH

Ms Vivian T CHAN

Mr CHEN Shuang

Mr CHENG Chao

Mr Gary WK CHEUNG
Mr Paul DAY

Mr Lieven MO DEBRUYNE
Mr Anthony HO

Mr Stephen CC HUI, JP
Mr LEE Seng Huang
Mr Thomas LEE

Mr Tony LEE

Ms Susan H LI

Ms LIN Xiang Hong

Mr Desmond LP LIU

Mr Peter LO

Mr Terry PAN

Mr James RF SHIPTON
Ms Barbara SHIU

Mr Yangzhou SONG

Mr Andrew SUM

Mr TAN Yue Heng

Mr Alec YW TSUI

Dr YIM Fung

Mr YIN Ke

Mr YU Wai Keung

Mr YU Yong

Mr Anthony YT MUH
Mr SF WONG

Nomination Committee
(2010)

Mr Craig B LINDSAY (Chairman)
Dr Bill CP KWOK, JP

Dr Cynthia KL LAM

Mr Dannis JH LEE

Mr Lawrence KH LEE

Mr Anthony YT MUH

Mr Siva P SINGHAM

Mr Richard D WINTER

Ms Barbara SHIU

Mr SF WONG

Ms Daisy SY LO (Secretary)
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Nomination Committee
(2011)

Mr Peter SH WONG (Chairman)
Dr Bill CP KWOK, JP

Dr Cynthia KL LAM

Mr Dannis JH LEE

Mr Lawrence KH LEE

Mr Craig B LINDSAY

Mr Richard D WINTER

Mr Anthony YT MUH

Mr SF WONG

Mr Teddie TW CHUNG (Secretary)

Ad-hoc Committee for
the Competency
Guidelines for PWM
Industry in Hong Kong
(ACCGP)

Dr Bill CP KWOK, JP (Chairman)
Ms Monique CHAN
Ms Grace CHOW
Mr Alex FUNG

Mr James HONG
Ms Yvonne HSIN

Mr Serge JANOWSKI
Mr Edwin LIM

Mr Allen LO

Mr Alan LUK

Mr Trevor MAK

Mr Rajesh MALKANI
Mr Andrew SUM

Mr Kenneth TOONG
Mr Sam TSE

Ms Anna WK WONG
Mr Jimmy WOO

Mr Jason YEUNG
Mr Lok YIM

Mr Anthony YT MUH
Mr SF WONG

Reviewers of the LE
Study Manuals
Ms Christina ELLERKER

Mr Wilson LO
Dr Evans CK LUI

Two other reviewers have requested

for their names to be kept private
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Reviewers of the LE G REEHEZ

Question Bank 2 Bk B

Ms Julia CHARLTON Mta#E &+

Miss Angelina A KWAN B2/

Dr Cynthia KL LAM MEE A

Prof LAM Kin MEH

Mr Anthony YT MUH IRERIEA

Mr Colin S SHAFTESLEY AL

Mr Trini CS TSANG W ke ek

Mr Philip A TYE Philip A TYE S/
Mr SF WONG FORB R

Contributors to HKSI wlHEE RN L

Examinations EA

LE External Assessors

Mr Alex CHAN PR 1) 14t 52 2
Mr Jeffrey CHAN [ @RS
Mr Joseph CHAN B i A
Ms Marcella CHAN B =L+
Mr Michael CHENG BT et
Mr Louis CHOW [EEEy e
Mr David FRIEDLAND David FRIEDLAND JE/&
Mr Paul HEDLEY ATH%d
Ms Vivian HU Lt
Mr Kenny LEE B N
Mr Joseph Bernard MOHAN AT A
Mr Martin SABINE fil0w e
Mr SIN Yiu Sang b b
Mr Stephen SO BRBR e
Mr Danny WAN K M SE A
Mr John WAN FEATE
Mr Frankie YAN HCREA
Mr Henry YEUNG Wi e
PDFM Examiners

Mr Syren JOHNSTONE HEHERY A
Dr Clement WONG Hi Tt
PDFM External Assessors

Mr Alex CHAN B St 5 2
Dr Daniel MOK KB A
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The directors have pleasure in submitting their annual report together with
the audited financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2011.

Principal place of business

Hong Kong Securities Institute (the “Institute”) is an institute incorporated
and domiciled in Hong Kong and has its registered office and principal
place of business at Room 2403-08, 24th Floor, Wing On Centre, 111
Connaught Road, Central, Hong Kong.

Principal activities

The principal activity of the Institute and its subsidiaries (the “group”)
is the provision of examinations leading to qualifications to securities
industry professionals. The group also provides seminars and continuing
training courses for members and practitioners to improve standards of
professional competence.

Financial statements

The surplus of the group for the year ended 31 March 2011 and the state
of the Institute’s and the group’s affairs as at that date are set out in the
financial statements on pages 59 to 89.

Transfer to general fund

Surplus for the year of HK$2,368,961 (2010: Deficit of HK$1,637,390) has
been transferred to general fund. Other movements in general fund are
set out in note 12 to the financial statements.

Fixed assets

Movements in fixed assets during the year are set out in note 8 to the
financial statements.
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Report of the Directors
e

Directors

The directors of the Institute during the year and up to the date of this
report are:

Mr Anthony Yi Tong Muh (Chairman)
Ms Barbara Shiu (Chairman)
(retired on 8 December 2010)
Ms Samantha Shuk Yee Ho
Mr George Kwok Lung Hongchoy
Mr Roger Kwok Keung Lee
Mr Colin Stuart Shaftesley
Mr Philip Andrew Tye
Mr Peter Shiu Hoi Wong
Prof Simon Shun Man Ho
(retired and re-elected on 8 December 2010)
Mr Ringo Kwok Keung Chiu
(retired and re-appointed on 8 December 2010)
Miss Angelina Agnes Kwan
(retired and re-appointed on 8 December 2010)
Ms Doris Man Yee Pak
(retired and re-appointed on 8 December 2010)
Dr Cynthia Kit Lan Lam
(elected on 8 December 2010)
Mr Trini Chi Suen Tsang
(elected on 8 December 2010)
Ms Anna Wai Kwan Wong
(elected on 8 December 2010)
Dr Bill Chi Piu Kwok, JP
(retired on 8 December 2010)
Mr Craig Blaser Lindsay
(retired on 8 December 2010)
Mr Siu Fun Wong
(retired and re-appointed on 8 December 2010)

In accordance with article 11.01 of the Institute’s memorandum and articles
of association, one third of the directors shall retire at the forthcoming annual
general meeting and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election. The
directors subject to retirement by rotation shall be those who have been
longest in office since their last appointment or re-appointment.
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Directors’ interests in contracts

No contract of significance to which the Institute was a party, and in which
a director of the Institute had a material interest, subsisted at the end of
the year or at any time during the year.

Auditors

KPMG retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment. A
resolution for the re-appointment of KPMG as honorary auditors of the
Institute is to be proposed at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

By order of the board

Mr Anthony YT Muh
Chairman

Hong Kong, 15 July 2011
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Auditor's Report
% B R

Independent auditor’s report to the members of
Hong Kong Securities Institute
(Incorporated in Hong Kong as a company limited by guarantee)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Hong Kong
Securities Institute (the “Institute”) and its subsidiaries (together “the group”)
set out on pages 59 to 89, which comprise the consolidated and company
balance sheets as at 31 March 2011, and the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in general
fund and the consolidated cash flow statement for the year then ended
and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information.

Directors’ responsibility for the consolidated financial
statements

The directors of the Institute are responsible for the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants and the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance
and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to
enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial
statements based on our audit. This report is made solely to you, as a body,
in accordance with section 141 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or
accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

HONG KONG SECURITIES INSTITUTE
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We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about
the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements.
The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and
fair view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating
the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness
of accounting estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating the
overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs of the Institute and of the group as at 31 March
2011 and of the group’s surplus and cash flows for the year then ended
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have
been properly prepared in accordance with the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

KPMG

Certified Public Accountants
8th Floor, Prince’s Building
10 Chater Road

Central, Hong Kong

Hong Kong, 15 July 2011
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

A A T R R

For the year ended 31 March 2011 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BE - ——F=H=+—HILFE (LEBKIIR)

Note 2011 2010
B

Turnover WA
Examination income Z A $ 23,750,098 $ 18,850,206
Continuing professional training T A I IR A

course income 15,227,585 13,824,499
Annual fees from members & BFH 4,375,128 4,455,503
Entrance fees from members B A& 38,700 57,300
Professional development seminar income % 2% % & fff 58 & Y A 1,165,750 1,079,700
Sale of study materials S B T8 A4 R 1,305,904 1,331,233
Cost of sales 5B AR
Cost of study materials sold H S B bR R A (673,846) (586,792)
Other income H At A
Sponsorship for Hong Kong Securities HFbHSEEE G

Institute Journal HAF % Bl A - 15,000
Interest income FLE WA 91,283 69,208
Other income oA i A 1,000,087 58,695
.5 45,280,689 § 39,154,552
Expenditure i
Staff costs B T A 4 $ 24,460,245 $ 22,151,949
Examination expenses B Sy 396,567 1,729,860
Continuing professional training expenses 4/ 2 2+ 7l 57 th) 5,364,654 3,968,771
Printing and stationery I ll B 3C EL 1,125,207 1,113,696
Marketing T 5 4 iR 866,024 958,839
Operating lease charges on premises i T 56 8 L 4 2 3,623,868 4,066,216
Depreciation EiiR = 8 931,175 1,556,201
Other premises expenses o Ath 5 T 2 1,447,247 1,419,901
Communications Gl 759,686 667,429
Professional development seminar expenses 5 2 % & iff wf & 2 i 274,288 449,112
Travelling and entertainment 75 it J 58 Bk 637,908 536,579
Bank charges SRATF A 664,535 489,379
Legal and professional fees TR S IR 219,015 339,447
Repair and maintenance HE1E KR AR 1,101,731 922,318
Management information system EHE A S 1,311,288 169,800
Miscellaneous expenses e A 2 728,290 252,445
.8 83011728 S 40,791,942
Surplus/(deficit) for the year NG L YNGR ]

transferred to general fund B (BiR) 12 $ 2,368,961 $§ (1,637,390)
Other comprehensive income N IR E
Exchange differences on translation of 5 vt S WA JBG 2 R B S R

financial statements of overseas JIT EE A 11 T 25

subsidiaries 13,257 1,572
Total comprehensive income for the year 4F & 4 iij Yt 25 48 % $ 2,382,218 $ (1,635,818)

The notes on pages 64 to 89 form part of these financial statements.
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Consolidated Balance Sheet | 60
mAERERAMEER
At 31 March 2011 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
SR -—FEEZHE1T—H (LHEESIR)

Note 2011 2010

B
Non-current assets I i By &
Fixed assets [l 5& & 8 $ 1,327,742 $ 1,646,606
Deposits %4 1,102,008 1,102,008
.8 2420750 5 2,748,614
Current assets ) &
Inventories — study materials T8 — WhE kL $ 281,367 § 344,243
Prepayments and other receivables T AT R B At 1 iRk 1,455,618 1,249,196
Cash and cash equivalents e M5 EY 11 34,403,111 30,965,739
.5 3640,006 5 32559178
Current liabilities i B £ 1%
Accruals and other payables JRE 5T 2 FH S L Al 1R £+ 2K $ 3,042531 $§ 2,595,403
Deferred income AESEYT A 4,045,345 3,612,637
.8 1,087,876 § 6,208,040
Netcurrentassets _______ wW§wEs@s 8 29052220 § 26,351,138
Net assets & e E $ 31,481,970 $ 29,099,752
Representing: £ -
General fund WA 12 $ 31,433,151 $ 29,064,190
Exchange reserve [ 52 ik i 12 48,819 35,562

$ 31,481,970 § 29,099,752

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 15 July 2011.  EHFi & ——4-LH + 1 H &M g 2

) )
Mr Anthony YT Muh ) wEEFEE )
) Directors ) wH
Ms Samantha SY Ho ) ittt )
) )
The notes on pages 64 to 89 form part of these financial statements. W64 E B9 E MM kB A MBEREN—
T

e
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Balance Sheet

% AR

At 31 March 2011 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
SR —-—FEZH =+ —H (BEIIR)

Note 2011 2010

B
Non-current assets I i B &
Fixed assets I $ 1,308,308 $ 1,618,979
Investment in subsidiary 7 BB 2 D i B 100 100
Deposits i 1,102,008 1,102,008
% 280416 8 2,721,087
Current assets B & E
Inventories — study materials & — s AR $ 281,367 $ 344,243
Prepayments and other receivables T8 A5 2K B o Ath B iz 2K 1,402,124 1,197,124
Amounts due from subsidiaries JPRE W o) /) kI 10 - 1,730,824
Cash and cash equivalents He MBS EY 11 34,242,987 30,730,108
e ..._.% 35926478 § 34,002,299
Current liabilities it B £ 1%
Accruals and other payables JRE 5T 2 ) % L Al 1 £+ 2K $ 3,036,586 $ 2,580,381
Deferred income ESEYT A 4,045,345 3,612,637
% TO081931 5 6,193,018
Netcurrentassets ______ w©vEs@s 8 28844547 | § 27,809,281
Net assets & A $ 31,254,963 $§ 30,530,368
Representing: £
General fund WA 12 $ 31,254,963 $§ 30,530,368

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 15 July 2011.

Mr Anthony YT Muh
Directors
Ms Samantha SY Ho

—_ — — — —

The notes on pages 64 to 89 form part of these financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in General Fund
5% 4 VO & 52 W) %

For the year ended 31 March 2011 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
WE-FZ——F=H=+—HIEFE (LHHEIIR)

Attributable to equity shareholders

HE 2 e 30 A 56 43
General Exchange Total
fund reserve equity
WE A& E 53 fik ffi i £ 48 45
Balance at 1 April 2009 REZERIEN A — H 4 $ 30,701,580 $ 33,990 $ 30,735,570
Deficit for the year 4F 1A i 48 (1,637,390) - (1,637,390)
Other comprehensive A 1Ay A 2 T e 4
income for the year - 1,572 1,572
Balance at 31 March 2010 REF-FE=ZH=1—H
and 1 April 2010 RoFZ—TENA— AR § 29,064,190 $ 35,562 $ 29,099,752
Surplus for the year 4F 1A 28 B 2,368,961 - 2,368,961
Other comprehensive A 1Ay A 2 T e 4
income for the year - 13,257 13,257
Balance at 31 March 2011 AR S8
ZHEF— H& 6% $ 31,433,151 $ 48,819 $ 31,481,970
The notes on pages 64 to 89 form part of these financial statements. 5564 E % A5 89 B Y Bk I A BB R K —

5 -
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

e Bl e e R

For the year ended 31 March 2011 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BE - ——F=H=+—HILFE (LEBKIIR)

Note 2011 2010
M 5

Surplus/(deficit) for the year AR (ER) $ 2,368,961 § (1,637,390)
Adjustments for: HBIEE -
— Interest income — R B A (91,283) (69,208)
— Depreciation — g 931,175 1,556,201
Operating profit/(loss) before changes i % 4 % B i

in working capital BEwBRMN, (EER) $ 3,208,853 $ (150,397)
Decrease/(increase) in inventories R () 62,876 (11,117)
(Increase)/decrease in deposits, i~ FATFR H A

prepayments and other receivables JRE i3 (B ) b (206,422) 295,781
Increase in accruals and other payables — E&125 I K L fi 8 5 X 4 fin 447,128 1,045,784
Increase in deferred income A FE WA S0 432,708 1,188,710
Net cash generated from R8T B) P 15 i Bl
_.Operating activities | .....8 736,200 5 2,368,761
Investing activities P& B
Interest received B YA S $ 91,283 § 69,208
Payment for purchase of fixed assets i [ 2 B A AR (610,780) (244,364)
Net cash used in investing activities SR WBFANAaWE __________ 8 ___(519497) 5 _ (175,156)
Net increase in cash and B 4 Te Bl 42 55 161 40 14 I 33 A0

cash equivalents $ 3,425,646 $ 2,193,605
Cash and cash equivalents as at 1 April RPUAH —HEB S LB L% EY 30,965,739 28,770,382
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes [ 38 % {k ity 5% % 11,726 1,752
Cash and cash equivalents RE=H=1+—HHB%E

as at 31 March KB4 % E 11 $ 34,403,111 § 30,965,739

The notes on pages 64 to 89 form part of these financial statements.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Status and principal activities of the Institute

The Institute was incorporated on 28 November 1997 under the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance as a company limited by guarantee.

Every member of the Institute has undertaken to contribute such an
amount as may be required (not exceeding $100) to the Institute’s
assets if it should be wound up while he is @ member or within one
year after he ceases to be a member.

The principal activity of the Institute is the provision of examinations
leading to qualifications to securities industry professionals. The Institute
also provides seminars and continuing training courses for members
and practitioners to improve standards of professional competence.

Significant accounting policies

(a) Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with
all applicable Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (HKFRSs),
which collective term includes all applicable individual Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards
(HKASs) and Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants (HKICPA), accounting principles
generally accepted in Hong Kong and the requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. A summary of the significant
accounting policies adopted by the group is set out below.

The HKICPA has issued certain new and revised HKFRSs that
are first effective or available for early adoption for the current
accounting period of the group. Note 3 provides information on
any changes in accounting policies resulting from initial application
of these developments to the extent that they are relevant to the
group for the current and prior accounting periods reflected in
these financial statements.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
BA % e 7% Bt 5E

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(LAUE 51 7R )

Significant accounting policies (Continued)

(b) Basis of preparation of the financial statements

(c)

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
March 2011 comprise the Institute and its subsidiaries (together
referred to as the “group”).

The measurement basis used in the preparation of the financial
statements is the historical cost basis.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with HKFRSs
requires management to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions that affect the application of policies and reported
amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. The estimates
and associated assumptions are based on historical experience
and various other factors that are believed to be reasonable under
the circumstances, the results of which form the basis of making
the judgements about carrying values of assets and liabilities that
are not readily apparent from other sources. Actual results may
differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an
ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised
in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects
only that period, or in the period of the revision and future periods
if the revision affects both current and future periods.

Investment in subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the group. Control exists
when the group has the power to govern the financial and operating
policies of an entity so as to obtain benefits from its activities.
In assessing control, potential voting rights that presently are
exercisable are taken into account.

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into the consolidated
financial statements from the date that control commences until
the date that control ceases. Intra-group balances and transactions
and any unrealised profits arising from intra-group transactions are
eliminated in full in preparing the consolidated financial statements.
Unrealised losses resulting from intra-group transactions are
eliminated in the same way as unrealised gains but only to the
extent that there is no evidence of impairment.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

(c)

(d)

Investment in subsidiaries (Continued)

In the Institute’s balance sheet, an investment in a subsidiary is
stated at cost less impairment losses (see note 2(h)), unless the
investment is classified as held for sale (or included in a disposal
group that is classified as held for sale).

Fixed assets

Fixed assets are stated in the balance sheet at cost less accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses (see note 2(h)).

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of items of fixed
assets, less their estimated residual value, if any, using the straight
line method over their estimated useful lives as follows:

- Leasehold improvements Over the term of lease
- Computer equipment 3 years
- Office equipment, 5 years

furniture and fixtures

Both the useful life of an asset and its residual value, if any, are

reviewed annually.

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal of an item of

fixed assets are determined as the difference between the net disposal

proceeds and the carrying amount of the item and are recognised in

profit or loss on the date of retirement or disposal.

(e)

Revenue recognition

Provided it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the
group and the revenue and costs, if applicable, can be measured
reliably, revenue is recognised in the statement of comprehensive
income as follows:

2
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Bt B e A B RE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(LAUE 51 7R )

Significant accounting policies (Continued)

(e) Revenue recognition (Continued)

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

Subscriptions from members

Subscriptions represent entrance fees from new members
and annual fees from existing members. Entrance fees from
new members are recognised as income when the applicant
has been approved as a member of the Institute by the
Membership Committee and the fees have been received.
Annual fees from existing members are recognised as income
by the Institute over the period to which they relate. The
unrecognised portion of annual fees is recorded as deferred
income in the balance sheet.

Income from professional development seminars, continuing
professional training courses and examinations

Such income is recognised when the related seminar, course
or examination has been held.

Interest income
Interest income is recognised as it accrues using the effective
interest method.

Dividends
Dividend income from unlisted investments is recognised when
the shareholder’s right to receive payment is established.

Sponsorship for Hong Kong Securities Institute Journal

Sponsorships represent advertising revenue and sponsorship
income from issuing Hong Kong Securities Institute Journal.
Such income is recognised upon the publication of the
respective issue.

Sales of study materials

Revenue is recognised when study materials are sold to
customers which is taken to be the point in time when the
customer has accepted the study materials and the related
risk and rewards of ownership.

HONG KONG SECURITIES INSTITUTE
Annual Report 2011
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Significant accounting policies (Continued)

(f)

(9)

Foreign currencies translation

Foreign currency transactions during the year are translated
at the foreign exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates.
Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies
are translated at the foreign exchange rates ruling at the balance
sheet date.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured in terms of
historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the foreign
exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates. Non-monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies that are
stated at fair value are translated using the foreign exchange
rates ruling at the dates the fair value was determined.

The results of foreign operations are translated into Hong Kong
dollars at the exchange rates approximating the foreign exchange
rates ruling at the dates of the transactions. Balance sheet items
are translated into Hong Kong dollars at the foreign exchange
rates ruling at the balance sheet date. The resulting exchange
differences are recognised directly in a separate component of
equity.

On disposal of a foreign operation, the cumulative amount of
the exchange differences relating to that foreign operation is
reclassified from equity to profit or loss.

Operating lease charges

Leases of assets under which the lessor has not transferred all
the risks and benefits of ownership are classified as operating
leases.

Where the group has the use of assets under operating leases,
payments made under the leases are charged to the statement of
comprehensive income in equal instalments over the accounting
periods covered by the lease term, except where an alternative
basis is more representative of the pattern of benefits to be derived
from the leased asset. Lease incentives received are recognised
in the statement of comprehensive income as an integral part
of the aggregate net lease payments made. Contingent rentals
are charged to the statement of comprehensive income in the
accounting period in which they are incurred.

2

Bt B e A W Rk

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(L W51 7R )

F 2|k BOR (4)

(f)

(9)

Hb s e 5

AR B AW 2 B 1 22 B H I BE %
B o LAAMIE By B ) W I
£ A 4% B E A RROH O BE R i
g

AR SR AS Gt 8 9 S0 W O B W
B A R 22 5 B R Ah T E R
B o DLANHE B BT DL AR (A
HRe 1A B RV B M E
FABAEE H Y S RE 240 5 -

B AN 688 W SE AR S A B B AR
TEE 256 1 7 1 MR 4 B /o W o
R IE B A& 5 F S TE 2
BB v W o B E AR RO BE SL 2B A
HETEE i v e RRIE BB IR o

AN W > B B AN AR
B B 22 5t B 50 25 & oy 8 i BB A
F R R AR ©

o

REME®

st 8L XSl S 0 A7 9 2 3 B
T B P ) LU R A
B -

L Jigg A 4 T 9 ot A8 FE B T E
M L BIAR B AR B A A R
EMHE W AT EN e R R M
S5 HRTE A T AR R TR AN ER S (BN
HC At Y R O A M S WA A
v 7 A Y i A A KB B A o KRR
5 Wi sk T 0 T 14 D 5 it 3% 7E 4 T
i 4 2% v il R 2 AH B TR A AR AR AR Y
AR 23 o B TH 4 7E L A Y B
w3 [H] P 7E 4 T4 % B o

R
R

68



69

2

Notes to the Financial Statements

B B e A B RE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(LA ¥ 31 7 )

Significant accounting policies (Continued)

(h) Impairment of assets

(i)

(ii)

Impairment of trade and other receivables

Impairment losses for bad and doubtful debts are measured
as the difference between the carrying amount of the financial
asset and the estimated future cash flows, discounted where
the effect of discounting is material.

Impairment of other assets

Internal and external sources of information are reviewed at
each balance sheet date to identify indications that the following
assets may be impaired or, an impairment loss previously
recognised no longer exists or may have decreased:

- fixed assets; and

— investment in subsidiary (except for those classified as
held for sale (or included in a disposal group that is
classified as held for sale)).

If any such indication exists, the asset’s recoverable amount
is estimated. In addition, for goodwill, intangible assets
that are not yet available for use and intangible assets
that have indefinite useful lives, the recoverable amount is
estimated annually whether or not there is any indication
of impairment.

—  Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset is the greater of its
net selling price and value in use. In assessing value in
use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their
present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects
current market assessments of time value of money and
the risks specific to the asset. Where an asset does not
generate cash inflows largely independent of those from
other assets, the recoverable amount is determined for
the smallest group of assets that generates cash inflows
independently (i.e. a cash-generating unit).
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Notes to the Financial Statements
B %5 e % B Bk

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(L5107 )

2 Significant accounting policies (Continued) 2 FEEFEBR A

(h) Impairment of assets (Continued)

(ii) Impairment of other assets (Continued)

(h) & & W5 (A7)

(ii) H Al & & o { (4 )
Recognition of impairment losses —  HERR WA

An impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss
whenever the carrying amount of an asset, or the
cash-generating unit to which it belongs, exceeds its
recoverable amount. Impairment losses recognised in
respect of cash-generating units are allocated first to
reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to
the cash-generating unit (or group of units) and then,
to reduce the carrying amount of the other assets in
the unit (or group of units) on a pro rata basis, except
that the carrying value of an asset will not be reduced
below its individual fair value less costs to sell, or value
in use, if determinable.

Reversals of impairment losses

In respect of assets other than goodwill, an impairment
loss is reversed if there has been a favourable change in
estimates used to determine the recoverable amount. An
impairment loss in respect of goodwill is not reversed.

Areversal of an impairment loss is limited to the asset’s
carrying amount that would have been determined had no
impairment loss been recognised in prior years. Reversals
of impairment losses are credited to profit or loss in the
year in which the reversals are recognised.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Bt B e A B RE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(LAUE 51 7R )

Significant accounting policies (Continued)

(i)

(i)

(k)

Inventories

Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and net realisable
value.

Cost is calculated using the first-in, first-out formula and comprises
all costs of purchase, costs of conversion and other costs incurred in
bringing the inventories to their present location and condition.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary
course of business less the estimated costs of completion and
the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of those inventories
is recognised as an expense in the period in which the related
revenue is recognised. The amount of any write-down of inventories
to net realisable value and all losses of inventories are recognised
as an expense in the period the write-down or loss occurs.
The amount of any reversal of any write-down of inventories is
recognised as a reduction in the amount of inventories recognised
as an expense in the period in which the reversal occurs.

Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are initially recognised at fair value
and thereafter stated at amortised cost less impairment losses for
bad and doubtful debts, except where the receivables are interest-
free loans made to related parties without any fixed repayment
terms or the effect of discounting would be immaterial. In such
cases, the receivables are stated at cost less impairment losses
(see note 2(h)) for bad and doubtful debts).

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are initially recognised at fair value and
thereafter stated at amortised cost unless the effect of discounting
would be immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost.

HONG KONG SECURITIES INSTITUTE
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Notes to the Financial Statements

2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

(1)

(m

(n)

-

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and on hand,
demand deposits with banks and other financial institutions, and
short-term, highly liquid investments that are readily convertible into
known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant
risk of changes in value, having been within three months of
maturity at acquisition.

Employee benefits

(i) Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave, contributions
to defined contribution plans and the cost to the Institute
of non-monetary benefits are accrued in the year in which
the associated services are rendered by employees. Where
payment or settlement is deferred and the effect would be
material, these amounts are stated at their present values.

(if) Contributions to Mandatory Provident Funds as required under
the Hong Kong Mandatory Fund Schemes Ordinance, are
recognised as an expense in the statement of comprehensive
income as incurred.

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain timing or
amount when the group or the Institute has a legal or constructive
obligation arising as a result of a past event, it is probable that
an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the
obligation and a reliable estimate can be made. Where the time
value of money is material, provisions are stated at the present
value of the expenditures expected to settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits
will be required, or the amount cannot be estimated reliably,
the obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the
probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote. Possible
obligations, whose existence will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future events are
also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the probability of
outflow of economic benefits is remote.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
BA % e 7% Bt 5E

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(LAUE 51 7R )

2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

(o) Related parties

For the purposes of these financial statements, a party is considered
to be related to the group if:

(i) the party has the ability, directly or indirectly through one or
more intermediaries, to control the group or exercise significant
influence over the group in making financial and operating
policy decisions, or has joint control over the group;

(ii) the group and the party are subject to common control;

(iii) the party is a subsidiary, an associate of the group or a joint
venture in which the group is a venturer;

(iv) the party is a member of key management personnel of the
group or the group’s parent, or a close family member of
such an individual, or is an entity under the control, joint
control or significant influence of such individuals;

(v) the party is a close family member of a party referred to in
(i) or is an entity under the control, joint control or significant
influence of such individuals; or

(vi) the party is a post-employment benefit plan which is for the
benefit of employees of the group or of any entity that is a
related party of the group.

Close family members of an individual are those family members
who may be expected to influence, or be influenced by, that
individual in their dealings with the entity.

(p) Non-reciprocal contributions from third parties

Non-reciprocal contributions from third parties that compensate
the group for expenses incurred are recognised as revenue in
profit or loss on a systematic basis in the same periods in which
the expenses are incurred.

HONG KONG SECURITIES INSTITUTE
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Changes in accounting policies

The HKICPA has issued two revised HKFRSs, a number of amendments
to HKFRSs and two new Interpretations that are first effective for
the current accounting period of the group and the Institute. None
of these developments are relevant to the group and the Institute’s
operations.

The group and the Institute have not applied any new standard or
interpretation that is not yet effective for the current accounting period
(see note 16).
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(L W51 7R )
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Staff costs B T A
The group
A H
2011 2010
Salaries, wages and other benefits  #r: ~ T & J& H b 47 A $ 23,622,117 $ 21,385,229
Contributions to defined T AR T ) 9 Rk
contribution plan 838,128 766,720
$ 24,460,245 $ 22,151,949

Auditors’ remuneration

The position of the auditors of the Institute is honorary and therefore
no auditors’ remuneration was paid during the year (2010: $Nil).
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75 | Notes to the Financial Statements

Bt B e A B RE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(LA ¥ 517 )
6 Directors’ remuneration 6 #HFME
Directors’ remuneration disclosed pursuant to section 161 of the Hong MR A5 B Vs O ) AR £81) ) 585 16116 45 8 1) 3 5
Kong Companies Ordinance is as follows: P < 4
2011 2010
Directors’ fee 4 $ - 9 =
Salaries, allowances and benefits — #4 ~ HAG M AR 1,932,840 1,901,557
Bonuses fEA4L 483,210 -
$ 2,416,050 $ 1,901,557
7 Taxation 7 B
The Institute is a professional association and not more than half of HRAGE—MEEHE > MAgUg
the receipts by way of subscriptions are from persons who would be Y AU I FRIE A S 2 Ok
entitled to claim their subscriptions as allowable deductions for the 7 HE R 5 2R A R A s R A5 B Bk Y
purpose of Hong Kong Profits Tax. The Institute is therefore not subject N> B > A 8 AR R A v B 5 Ak 1))
to Hong Kong Profits Tax under section 24(2) of the Hong Kong Inland 5524(2) W A ZE w8 s R A5 B o O A
Revenue Ordinance. Accordingly, no provision for Hong Kong Profits AE B 75 Sk 2 TR0 2 45 A s ) A5 HE A

Tax has been made in the financial statements.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

W B ik % B Ak
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(DA HE ¥ 51 7R )
8 Fixed assets 8 Ml & E
The group
AR
Furniture,
fixtures and
Leasehold office Computer
improvements equipment equipment Total
A
[E] 72 % B A
LB %05 W R Al R M ik
Cost: JA
At 1 April 2010 RZE-FENH —H $ 1,878,099 $ 1,485,391 § 4,827,129 $ 8,190,619
Additions HE 178,900 95,520 336,360 610,780
Exchange difference [ 5254 - 1,578 1,141 2,719
UG Al REFCTRSAZTTH S 20899 b_Asede9 §_5164630 8 880418
Accumulated depreciation:  Rzhi% :
At 1 April 2010 REE—FENH—H $ 1,864,859 $ 902,059 $ 3,777,095 $ 6,544,013
Charged for the year AREEYE 69,971 189,280 671,924 931,175
Exchange difference B i 2 %0 - 667 521 1,188
G e BB THSA=t7A 8 1934880 5 _1.002006 S_AMos 8 TAT6NT6
Net book value: i i -0 ¢
At 31 March 2011 REE-—F=A=1—H § 122,169 § 490,483 § 715,090 $ 1,327,742
FHErEERG

SR EEH



77 | Notes to the Financial Statements

W B Rk 3 B A
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(LAUE 51 7R )
8 Fixed assets (Continued) 8 [l & & (4)
The group
A
Furniture,
fixtures and
Leasehold office Computer
improvements equipment equipment Total
A -
JF] 72 % B A
LB % 05 IO % A Bk M
Cost: BUA
At 1 April 2009 REFERAENA—H $ 1,954,866 $ 1,399,156 $ 4,668,891 $ 8022913
Additions HE - 86,172 158,192 244,364
Written-off il (76,767) - - (76,767)
Exchange difference 5t 2 4 - 63 46 109
AR RoR_RECAZTA S 1878099 L L S At 8 8190619
Accumulated depreciation:  Zzhi% :
At 1 April 2009 RZFEFRIENA—H $ 1,293,787 § 705,042 $ 3,065,461 $ 5,064,290
Charged for the year AEENE 647,839 196,865 711,497 1,556,201
Written-off il (76,767) - - (76,767)
Exchange difference HE 3.7 4 - 152 137 289
A LA ROZCRESASTOA S 186485 5 _ 002059 . §_ 37088 8 6544013
Net book value: e i 0
At 31 March 2010 NEE—FE=ZA=1—H § 13,240 $ 583,332 $ 1,050,034 $ 1,646,606

HONG KONG SECURITIES INSTITUTE
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Bt B e A W Rk

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(DA G ¥ 51 7% )
Fixed assets (Continued) 8 Il & & @ (44)
The Institute
N}
Furniture,
fixtures and
Leasehold office Computer
improvements equipment equipment Total
A
[ 5 %5 B A1
L8 % 15 WAk A B M ik
Cost: JA :
At 1 April 2010 RZF—FENA—H $ 1,878,099 $ 1,456,917 $ 4,806,532 $ 8,141,548
Additions HE 178,900 95,520 336,360 610,780
s e A REFCTASAZTTH S 206099 S_aseear §_SmM2g 8 8752328
Accumulated depreciation:  Zzhi% :
At 1 April 2010 REE—TENH —H $ 1,869,375 $ 888,382 § 3,764,812 $ 6,522,569
Charged for the year ARAEEYTE 69,971 182,906 668,574 921,451
U el REFCTHRSAZTTH S 19346 S_omase §_Aandee 8 7444020
Net book value: R T A <
At 31 March 2011 RoFE-—H=A=1—H § 117,653 § 481,149 § 709,506 $ 1,308,308
FHE LR G

S®—— 5N
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Fixed assets (Continued)

Notes to the Financial Statements

Bt B e A B RE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(PAUE #5171 )

8 [ ¥&E ()

The Institute

N
Furniture,
fixtures and
Leasehold office Computer
improvements equipment equipment Total
(3
[ 5 % B A
HLEE % 15 T2 % s Al T A A
Cost: BUA
At 1 April 2009 REZEZNFENA—H $ 1,878,099 $ 1,370,745 § 4,648,340 7,897,184
Additions WE = 86,172 158,192 244,364
Written-off il - - - -
i LA ROZCRESAZITA S 187809 S _lamear . §_Ates 8 E
Accumulated depreciation:  ZzHi % :
At 1 April 2009 RZFFEJENA—H $ 1,221,536 $ 697,538 $ 3,057,657 4,976,731
Charged for the year AEENE 647,839 190,844 707,155 1,545,838
Written-off Eiv = = - =
N U ROR_RESAZTH S 1869315 b seeds b aead2 8 e
Net book value: G T 5 ¢
At 31 March 2010 RoF—FE=A=1+—H § 8,724 $ 568,535 § 1,041,720 1,618,979

HONG KONG SECURITIES INSTITUTE

Annual Report 2011



Notes to the Financial Statements

o i

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(LA W51 7R )

Investments in subsidiary 9 JRAMEAWMBZE

Investment in subsidiary 7 BB >\ B B

The Institute

N
2011 2010
$ 100 § 100

At the balance sheet date, the Institute held/effectively held the — A& H » ARG A HEREA LT M E A
entire issued ordinary share capital and general fund of the following ) A2 R A AT AR B 4

Proportion of ownership interest

subsidiaries:

Particulars

Place of of issued Group’s

incorporation and paid- effective

Name of company and operation up capital interest

sl 1 i 3 K T & A 45

AR B8 b B HUR A B A

Hong Kong Securities Hong Kong 100 shares 100%
Institute (China) Limited of $1 each
R e S GRTE 100
() A7 FRAS ] g i 1Hi
17C Iy

YNERE B & People’s Registered 100%
AIRA A Republic of capital of
China (PRC) USD125,000
g AR A A
JLF0 B 125,000 7t

(i)

*

This company is a PRC limited company.

In 2007, the Hong Kong Securities Institute (China) Limited set up a
wholly owned subsidiary, %15 & % 54 FR 2w, in the PRC to carry
out the provision of consulting services on training and development for
Hong Kong Securities Institute on 19 November 2007.

Fit A HERE 72 Lk

Held Held

by the by a Principal

Institute  subsidiary activity
HA®  HHE A

ESEE] S e ELE 30

100% - Investment

holding

BB IR

- 100% Consulting
services on
training and

development
SR LB I
& b
s ity R

YO RTE - RARAT .

REFFZLEL—HTRLE > FEHH
B () AR A AE RS T
2 G ) Jag A W) — PRI BE AT (5 S 7 A R
AT 7R e PR A B B % R R Y A IR
o
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81 | Notes to the Financial Statements

Bt B e A B RE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(AU 51 7R )
10 Amounts due from subsidiaries 10 J&E W B 8 2 W] 3K JH
2011 2010
Amounts due from subsidiaries JRE WS o 2 ) R I $ 1,730,824 § 1,730,824
Less: impairment loss W R R 1 (1,730,824) -
$ - $ 1,730,824
Amounts due from subsidiaries are unsecured, interest-free and JRE Wz BFF B N ] R TR A SR B KA
repayable on demand. R R 3 o
11 Cash and cash equivalents M BRERREEFED
The group The Institute
AEH K@
2011 2010 201 2010
Deposits with banks and SRAT R HA
other financial institutions B4 #S#
FER $ 34,349,231 $ 30,896,529 $ 34,189,916 $ 30,660,998
Cash at bank and in hand ~ $R1777 3K
Y& 53,880 69,210 53,071 69,110
$ 34,403,111 $ 30,965,739 $ 34,242987 $ 30,730,108
12 General fund and exchange reserve 12 & 58 5 & K [E 5 il s
(a) General fund (a) ¥ 8 2 &
The group The Institute
ASEH @
2011 2010 2011 2010
General fund at 1 April AP H—H
RS $ 0 29,064,190 $ 30,701,580 $ 30,530,368 $ 31,754,082
Surplus/(deficit) for AR BE
the year transferred EEn
from the statement RIA
of comprehensive %,/ (k8)
income 2,368,961 (1,637,390) 724,595 (1,223,714)
General fund WR=H=+—H
at 31 March 45 8 4 $ 31,433,151 $ 29,064,190 $ 31,254,963 $ 30,530,368

HONG KONG SECURITIES INSTITUTE
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12 General fund and exchange reserve (Continued)

(a)

(b)

General fund (Continued)

The Securities and Futures Commission (‘the SFC”) provided
funding of $2 million, $3 million and $10 million to the Institute
in the years ended 31 March 2000, 31 March 1999 and 31 March
1998 respectively. As at 31 March 2011, the total funding from the
SFC amounted to $15 million (2010: $15 million). This funding is
non-refundable, non-interest bearing, and repayable only in the
event that the Institute is wound up.

Surpluses or deficits are transferred to or from the statement
of comprehensive income in accordance with the memorandum
and articles of association and shall be applied solely towards
the promotion of the objects of the Institute as set forth in the
memorandum and articles of association.

o i

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(LA W51 7R )

W A e W G ()

(a) 3@ 3 & (4)

HHRLMBEEHERZAG ((EE
FRBE_ZFFE=A=1+—
H—RAARFE=ZA=Z+—HK—
ANNEZA =+ — H IR4FBE 7 Al
] A @ $2 {3t B i 2008 T - W
300 ot Jo i 1,000 oG o A - F
A=t H hEEER
At B & g 5 3k 8 W 1,500 T (—
T FAEE 15008 7T) o | S
BeHATBRE - 28 i HELE
Ay i AR I AR

oL B U 1R AR R A A AL AR S AR
R A T A0 ) s A B 4 TR AR
o ol R R B g R A
e R A % 490 5 BT A P AR

Exchange reserve (b) FE 54 fif fi
The group
A 4
2011 2010
Exchange reserve at 1 April AU H — H A BE 555 1 $ 35562 $ 33,990
Exchange difference on WY 2 W BB R
translation of financial JIT 7 A= 11 R 54, 75 BH
statements of subsidiaries 13,257 1,572
Exchange reserve A=A = H OB RE S
as at 31 March $ 48,819 § 35,562

The exchange reserve comprises all foreign exchange differences
arising from the translation of the financial statements of foreign
operations. The reserve is dealt with in accordance with the
accounting policies set out in note 2(f).

T 50 fof €20 455 R 45 5 ¥ S 26 5 1) B
5 i 2R BT E A B 24 TP BE S0 25 o %
it A e FRL R G2 () B 3 0 & w1 BOR AR
g o
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B % e 7% Bt 5E

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(PAUE 51 7R )

13 Financial risk management and fair values

Exposure to credit, liquidity, interest rate and foreign currency risks

arises in the normal course of the group’s and the Institute’s business.

The group’s and the Institute’s exposure to these risks and the financial

risk management policies and practices used by the group and the

Institute to manage these risks are described below.

(a)

(b)

Credit risk

The group and the Institute do not hold any significant financial
assets other than cash and cash equivalents. Cash and cash
equivalents held by the group and the Institute are deposited
with reputable financial institutions.

The maximum exposure to credit risk is represented by the carrying
amount of each financial asset in the balance sheet.

Liquidity risk

The group’s policy is to regularly monitor its liquidity requirements
to ensure that it maintains sufficient reserves of cash to meet its
liquidity requirements in the short and longer term.

The following table details the remaining contractual maturities at
the balance sheet date of the group’s and the Institute’s financial
liabilities, which are based on contractual undiscounted cash
flows (including interest payments computed using contractual
rates or, if floating, based on rates current at the balance sheet
date) and the earliest date the group and the Institute can be
required to pay:

13 <& il Ja\ By 4 B A 2 A 180

A SR B Je AR G AE H W EH HOR AR B
L) A~ M R0 AN WS A5 SRR o A
A T T A 36 7 2 By 0 R I A DL B A
i T 7 e T B BT R T Y < e o L
FREFN L W B A R 3 o

(a)

(b)

fr B B B

AL RA TR T Ble KB &% H
Wy 2 41 > S B Ry A AT T R G
FE o A4 R AR 8 P R AR B4 e
4 S5 R 4 3 A7 RO 5 B R B A B
H A o

B K 10 A Bl B AR S R R R
TA) 5 T < il )R TR <2 R

i B ' & BB

75 T ST T B o WU
HO OB 8 4 oK > LR (R M HE A T
W0 B 4 B LA R 0 0 0
7 e oK -

T R wE 7 A L A AR Y A
BB R A B KE o 3%
& 4 il B (TR DLA JE R I BLBL 4 I
(LA DAY E AR (o o i B $%
T &5 B BRI R R S5 AR A
) B A 42 I A A 8 Z8 SCA IR e B H
R YE

The group
AL
2011 2010
Total Within Total Within
contractual 1 year contractual 1 year
Carrying undiscounted or on Carrying  undiscounted or on
amount cash flow demand amount cash flow demand
e A E
R —ERN AATH AN
i Tl £ Blewe Wi £ 38 He Bl g B £ 2
Accruals and JER T2 A
other payables JLMREAT $ 3,042,531 § 3,042,531 § 3,042,531 § 2595403 § 2,595,403 § 2,595,403
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13 Financial risk management and fair values (Continued)

(b)

(c)

(d)

Liquidity risk (Continued)

2011
Total
contractual
Carrying undiscounted
amount cash flow
s
Ay
Ji 1 B&waE
Accruals and JES 2 A
other payables HibgEME  § 3,036,586 $ 3,036,586 §

o

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(L W51 7R )

13 4l L BE 45 B A0 4 o BB (40)
(b) ¥ B ¥ 4 & B ()

The Institute

A

2010
Within Total Within
1 year contractual 1 year
or on Carrying  undiscounted or on
demand amount cash flow demand
— 4 P 5 A A Bl — R
B R T £ Blg i B £ 2
3,036,586 § 2,580,381 § 2,580,381 § 2,580,381

Interest rate risk

The group’s and the Institute’s interest-bearing assets mainly
comprise cash at bank, which matures, or reprices in the short
term. As a result, the group and the Institute are subject to
limited exposure to fluctuations in the prevailing level of market
interest rates.

At 31 March 2011, it is estimated that a general increase of
100 basis points in interest rates, with all other variables held
constant, would increase the Institute’s surplus and general fund
by approximately $33,816 (2010: $28,986) so far as the effect on
interest-bearing financial assets is concerned.

Currency risk

The group and the Institute are exposed to currency risks primarily
arising from transactions that are denominated in United States
dollars (“USD”) and Renminbi (“RMB”). As the USD is pegged to
the Hong Kong dollar (“HKD”), the group considers the risk of
movements in exchange rates between the HKD and the USD to
be insignificant. In respect of transactions denominated in RMB,
the group monitors its exposure on a regular basis.

(c) A 38 B

A WA AR B S E R R
TE 48 30 7 239 = 7 R B R 9 R AT A7
Ao AL s AN G AR 8 R AT
35 1) S 3 Bl i 7 32 fY) JEUBR A BR o

—E——FZA=+—H 3%
F % 8 - FH00H 225 > b BT 47
A 5 IR R 5 B B
BT RN E  ARNRBA
9 S 4 6 PR L 4G 0 4 5 W 33,816

TE(ZE R4 - {51528,9867T) ©

(d) &b % R B

7 45 [ A0 A 8 T B IR A DA ST
HN B W Z B B4 32 ) BT A 2 B4 b
Wi JE B o ph R 5% e BV DT #h 5 B
DA SR 8 /% - 9% 0 Bl i T Y BEE ¢
B AR o BN R A
BEHY 2S5 A5 4 [ i ) B 2 AL

[
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B % e 7% Bt 5E

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(LA W31 7R )
13 Financial risk management and fair values (Continued) 13 4l B A BE A A e fEAE (4
(d) Currency risk (Continued) (d) &b B ()
(i) Exposure to currency risk (i) SF W g I
The following table details the group’s exposure at the T RS AR A &5 5 H BT
balance sheet date to currency risk arising from recognised 2R JE DAAS € 1Y 2 e & B
assets or liabilities denominated in a currency other than the (ERPASR 578 -9 S=K iR
Institute’s functional currency. JEUBE o
The group
A 4K
2011 2010
Renminbi Renminbi
N NG
Hong Kong dollar equivalent: i 45 { :
Cash and cash equivalents  Bil4: KB &4 EY) $ 143,809 § 218,211
Net exposure to currency risk & ¥ Jal b & 45 5 4 $ 143,809 § 218,211
The Institute does not have any exposures to foreign A 317 4R AT AT 411 s S B R A o

currencies.

HONG KONG SECURITIES INSTITUTE
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o

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(DA ¥ 31 7R )

13 Financial risk management and fair values (Continued) 13 4 il B A BE A A R fEAE (4
(d) &b %l B (4F)

(ii) % /2 B 5 b

(d) Currency risk (Continued)

(ii) Sensitivity analysis

The following table indicates the approximate change in the
group’s surplus for the year and general fund in response to
reasonably possible changes in the foreign exchange rates
to which the group has significant exposure at the balance
sheet date. Other components of equity would not be affected

TRIURA T H > A EE
%A JEE 5 % S 3 ik 4 (K] e
A ot 8 TRt Y BEE 3 A R
A A T L L A AL A 2 AL
%é%ﬁhﬁﬁ%ﬁx@gﬂ

by changes in the foreign exchange rates. fE 3 el At (1) 5 288 o
The group
A 4 T

2011 2010
Increase/ Effect Increase/ Effect
(decrease) on surplus (decrease) on surplus
in foreign for the year in foreign for the year
exchange and general exchange and general
rates fund rates fund
A A PR EAAE
B K& B K
(K 58 B It (%) A 5%
Renminbi AR 10% $ 14,381 10% $ 21,821

The sensitivity analysis above has been determined assuming
that the change in foreign exchange rates had occurred
at the balance sheet date and had been applied to the

7 A S B A R AR R I R
AiHH A P ocs > A HE AR A
BERARAGIEZHEAATER

Institute’s exposure to currency risk for financial instruments G T L BT S A R B
in existence at that date, and that all other variables, in b IR (B SR T A At 8 (4
particular interest rates, remain constant. The stated changes P F R ) B S o fTak 8 4L
represent management’s assessment of reasonably possible RS EENAEIEEE
changes in foreign exchange rates over the period until the Mg]ip L0 F I R A
next annual balance sheet date. In this respect, it is assumed HE W A 1 BTG o BRI S

that the pegged rate between the HKD and the USD would
be materially unaffected by any changes in movement in
value of the USD against other currencies. The analysis is
performed on the same basis for 2010.

%*a@ B85 7 B T 40 B 2R
T € 5 K
8 (98 0 T 20 8 o 90 4
R fi S F A
fi -

HWwEFHERG
4%"$$ﬁ
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Bt B e A B RE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

13

14

15

(LA ¥ 31 7R )

Financial risk management and fair values (Continued)

(e) Fair value

All financial instruments are carried at amounts not materially
different from their fair values as at 31 March 2011 and 2010.

Commitments

At 31 March 2011, the total future minimum lease payments under non-
cancellable operating leases on properties are payable as follows:

13 4 il el B 45 PR o Fo L ME (A7)
(e) & A AR

Jir A 4 il TR O BB o — — 4
M_E-TE=ZA=+—HHAR
FEL(EL 23 Bl A K B B 51 iR

14 7% ¥

W_F——HE=ZH="1T—H BIELH
iRt B FR) 0 6 RS AR AR AR B AT A AR
A AR AT

The group The Institute
A5 A
2011 2010 2011 2010
Within 1 year —4ER $ 3,330,193 $ 3,805,739 $ 3,319,921 $ 3,621,732
After 1 year but —4ERHE
within 5 years TLAE A 1,207,244 4,536,876 1,207,244 4,527,165
$ 4,537,437 $ 8,342,615 $ 4,527,165 $ 8,148,897

Material related party transactions

On 13 July 2006, tenancy agreement was renewed with The Wing On
Company Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of Wing On Company
International Limited, for the lease of the Institute’s office premises.
Dr Bill Chi Piu Kwok, JP, a director of the Institute, is also a director
of Wing On Company International Limited. The tenancy agreement
covered three years from 1 September 2006 to 31 August 2009 at
a monthly rental of $195,024 and monthly air conditioning charges
and management fee of $45,888. The rental deposit at the year end
amounted to $722,736.

On 7 August 2006, the Institute entered into a new tenancy agreement
for the lease of additional office space at a monthly rental of $32,832
with The Wing On Company Limited up to 31 August 2009. In addition,
air conditioning charges and management fee amounting to $7,296
was payable per month. The rental deposit at the year end amounted
to $120,384.

HONG KONG SECURITIES INSTITUTE
Annual Report 2011

15 KB B h &2 5

SEERNELAT=ZH AGHEHKLH
BEABRA A (A GHEEDEREML - JP
HAEZA A ) 2 GG AR — KA
RA R BE— 4 > g HME g
195,024 76 F0 F 5% 2> A 19 9 ZE 4 B AR & i
Wk pE o oAb o Mg T AT 2 T R
F 5 A 4L 45,8880 o AR AU T 35 1
MM A _EEANELA—HEZFZN
FEANAZT—H > BIZAF - FEEEI
T 4 e 4 A S ¥ 722,736 7T o

TEREXNFENALH ARG HEKEA R
N E BT — R AR A > DL Ag H R W
32,83270 L A 7k 22 0 B 22 MO T M
HE-ZZNFENA=Z+—H 1L I
b > AT i) ZE A B % B G I
W57,2967C o 4F & I A FH 4 4 5 SRR
120,384 7T ©
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15 Material related party transactions (Continued)

On 16 December 2007, the Institute entered into another new tenancy
agreement for the lease of additional office space of Wing On Centre
at monthly rental of $46,816 with the Wing On Company Limited up to
31 August 2009. In addition, air conditioning charges and management
fee amounting to $6,384. The rental deposit at the year end amounted
to $194,600.

On 1 May 2008, the Institute further entered into another new tenancy
agreement for the lease of additional office space of Wing On Centre
at monthly rental of $75,240 with the Wing On Company Limited up to
31 August 2009. In addition, air conditioning charges and management
fee amounting to $11,035. The rental deposit at the year end amounted
to $258,826.

On 6 August 2009, tenancy agreement was renewed with The Wing
On Company Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of Wing On Company
International Limited, for the lease of the Institute’s office premises.
Dr Bill Chi Piu Kwok, JP, a director of the Institute, is also a director
of Wing On Company International Limited. The tenancy agreement
covered three years from 1 September 2009 to 31 August 2012 at
a monthly rental of $301,811 and monthly air conditioning charges
and management fee of $32,762. The rental deposit at the year end
amounted to $1,102,008.

o i

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(DA ¥ 31 7R )

15 H KB R 5 (#)

CEZREES A TANE ARG HRKE
HIRAEZET 05— % > Lhg H
4 s 146,816 0 A 7k % D B 2 HEA
A EE _FZNFENH=Z1T—HEF
1E o Wb Ak > HEAT 0 22 R 2 R A B A 3k
W 6,384 T o AF A IO & 4% & A L
#5194,600 T o

ZEE/MERLH—H > AGHEKZAR
AR ERFT —BHALS . UE A HEE
W 175,240 70 Fil K %P0 B 2 A A
W HE_ZZNFEANA=Z+—HR
1k o AN > AT R 22 A R B A 3
HE 11,0350 o 4F 45 IRF IO FH 42 45 4 & L 6
258,826 7T °

TERBAENANH A g Bk 2 B B
ARAE (ARG EFBEEEL > JPIE
FRAFRES) REMEAT - KEH
MR R4 — Iy LA > Lhig A& Hs
301,811 T il HI 5% 28 m) 1 ¥ 2E4F 25 A & i
Wi o o oAb o A T AT Y ZE WA A
B2 4 4k ok 1532,7625T o FH A B I 25 00
HMA_ZENFILA—HE_F——
EANAZT—H BIEZE o EERN
FHL 4 4 42 4 3Lk 11,102,008 7T

HRBHFHERG
=F——FER

>
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(LAUE 51 7R )

16 Possible impact of amendments, new standards and 16 2 £ —_ & — — £ = H =+ —

interpretations issued but not yet effective for the year
ended 31 March 2011

Up to the date of issue of these financial statements, the HKICPA has
issued a number of amendments and Interpretations and one new
standard which are not yet effective for the year ended 31 March 2011
and which have not been adopted in these financial statements. These
include the following which may be relevant to the Institute:

Effective for
accounting periods
beginning on or after

Revised HKAS 24, Related party disclosures
1 January 2011

Improvements to HKFRSs 2010
1 July 2010 or 1 January 2011

Amendments to HKAS 12, Income taxes
1 January 2012

The Institute is in the process of making an assessment of what
the impact of these amendments is expected to be in the period of
initial application. So far it has concluded that the adoption of them
is unlikely to have a significant impact on the group’s and Institute’s
results of operations and financial position.

This document is a Chinese translation. The English text should prevail
over the Chinese text.

HONG KONG SECURITIES INSTITUTE
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B 5 A

Examination Statistics (1 October 2010 to 30 September 2011)
FHEZ A Ha —BEE (201045101 H £201149H30H)

Licensing Examination for Securities and Futures Intermediaries

it g K B TE kB ' %

No. of No. of
No. of Candidates Candidates Average
Paper Enrolments* who Attended* who Passed* Pass Rate
W I E PN JE % N\ U GL N 3 A 1% AR
Paper 1 20,133 17,552 10,153 58%
Paper 2 1,467 1,200 838 70%
Paper 3 330 297 238 80%
Paper 4 13 11 11 100%
Paper 5 289 236 174 74%
Paper 6 746 634 462 73%
Paper 7 6,878 6,095 3,160 52%
Paper 8 6,606 5,866 3,000 51%
Paper 9 1,391 1,219 542 44%
Paper 10 16 14 0 0%
Paper 11 275 216 155 2%
Paper 12 549 468 307 66%
Total/Overall
ok 1O 3 h 38,693 33,808 19,040 62%

# Includes multiple enrolments by the same individuals during the year €345 [a] — 2% A= 15 5% 4 (A (9 2 Ui %

HKSI Professional Diploma in Financial Markets

EANRCE S
No. of No. of Candidates No. of Candidates Average
Paper Enrolments* who Attended* who Passed* Pass Rate
il L E YN JE% Nt L YNV P HHE R

EO TE Total EO TE Total EO TE Total EO TE  Overall

Module 1 23 4 27 17 4 21 7 3 10 41% 75% 48%
Module 2 25 3 28 20 3 23 7 1 8 35% 33% 35%
Module 3 13 3 16 9 3 12 3 3 6 33%  100%  50%
Module 4* 6 - 6 4 = 4 0 = 0 0% = 0%
Module 5* 8 - 8 6 - 6 0 - 0 0% - 0%
Module 6 14 — 14 10 — 10 4 - 4 40% - 40%
Module 7 16 = 16 10 = 10 3 = 3 30% = 30%

Total/Overall
K R 105 10 115 76 10 86 24 7 31 32%  70%  36%

*  Regulatory papers }i it %
# Includes multiple enrolments by the same individuals during the year €345 [a] — 2% A= 75 3% 4E [ (19 2 U %

Notes Fffzt:
EO - Examination-only Mode #fi% s 5 3
TE - Training and Examination Mode #5 3l & % g 45 5

BRBEARS G
e



91

Appendix A
BiE &% A

Licensing Examination for Securities and Futures Intermediaries (Paper 1) in the Mainland

NibEE A ERERERE A (E )

No. of No. of
No. of Candidates Candidates Average
Examination Session Enrolments?* who Attended* who Passed* Pass Rate
%k ek L IE PN JE 2% Nkt GLi N/ 1) H %R
October 2010 and May 2011 2,871 2,031 983 48%
# Includes multiple enrolments by the same individuals during the year €34 [F] — 2% A= 7 3% 4F [ 19 22 I %
Licensing Examination for Securities and Futures Intermediaries (Papers 1, 7 and 8) in Taiwan
PESEFLRNBEREBEREZA(E - BLEEN)
No. of No. of
No. of Candidates Candidates Average
Examination Session Enrolments?* who Attended* who Passed* Pass Rate
B e N K JE 2% N\ K 1IN PR R
Paper 1 (March and August 2011) 79 71 42 59%
Paper 7 (March and August 2011) 19 16 14 88%
Paper 8 (March and August 2011) 19 15 10 67%
Total/Overall
il O 3k 117 102 66 65%
# Includes multiple enrolments by the same individuals during the year €4 ] — 2% ZE 78 5% 4F 1A 1Y £ UK ¥ %
Eighth PRC Securities Regulations Examination
BN W LR 2R LR E %
No. of No. of
No. of Candidates Candidates Average
Examination Session Enrolments who Attended who Passed Pass Rate
7% HhE AN JBE 2% NI L PNYs F 3 M R
May 2011 20 16 Not disclosed Not disclosed
BA BA
MPF Intermediaries Examination
WA E A AER
No. of
Candidates Candidates Average
No. of Enrolments* who Attended? who Passed* Pass Rate
YN JBE % N\ K GLiN/S 3 i A
174 149 62%

# Includes multiple enrolments by the same individuals during the year 34 [f] — % A= £6 #% 4F 1A (19 £ WK i %

HONG KONG SECURITIES INSTITUTE
Annual Report 2011



Certified International Wealth Manager (CIWM) Final Examination

CIWM i & % &k

AppendixA | 92
B 5 A

No. of No. of
No. of Candidates Candidates Average

Examination Session Enrolments* who Attended* who Passed* Pass Rate

2% ik 1 - E YN 2% N Ik* 5L PN P8 A R
Paper 1 (September 2011) 1 0 —* —*
Paper 2 (September 2011) 2 2 —* —*
Paper 3 (September 2011) 2 1 —* —*

Total/Overall

ok g 5 3 = =

AT TARITEAEAT o > B3R b 9 S s B 3 A L4 b sl A 1o BT A )

Certified International Investment Analyst (ClIA) Final Examination

CIIAN 2 & % %

Includes multiple enrolments by the same individuals during the year €14 [a] — % A& 75 5% 4F 1A 1) 22 Vi %
Some data for the examination in September 2011 is not included since the marking is still in progress Hi20114E9 H 2wt 4 (19

No. of No. of
No. of Candidates Candidates Average
Examination Session Enrolments* who Attended* who Passed* Pass Rate
2% 5k ik 19 I EYN G % N\ k* a A& P8 i
Exam 1 (March 2011%) 7 4 1 25%
Exam 2 (March 2011%) 5 3 0 0%
Total/Overall
ok i3 -k 4 12 7 1 14%

Includes multiple enrolments by the same individuals during the year £33 [f] — 2% AE 78 5% 4F A 1 22 WK ¥ %

*  Data for the examination in September 2011 is not included since the marking is still in progress FijiA20114F9 A % sl il #1 10 57 55
TAEABAEHEAT o 138 v ) 0 5 B I S 6 455 b el 0 1) R

BRBEARS G
.
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BiE &% A

Enrolment by Education Level

BERERESNTZHAANBAE ]

Licensing Examination for Securities and Futures Intermediaries

RN N g

47% University or above
Bl b

22% Below University
KRELT

31% No Response
WA [

Professional Diploma in Financial Markets

AR ]

43% University or above
RELEPL E

35% Below University
KREUT

22% No Response
B A

LE (Paper 1) in the Mainland
P g B B K B 'R S R G )

82% University or above
REH k

18% Below University
KEDIT

0% No Response

A Bl

LE (Papers 1, 7 and 8) in Taiwan
EEEFAMBEREBERER (B BLEREEN)

73% University or above
RE E

12% Below University
KREELIF

15% No Response
B’ A [ e

Eighth PRC Securities Regulations Examination
SN b 2 AL AL E B

50% University or above
KRED E

30% Below University
KEUTF

20% No Response
WA [a] JE

MPF Intermediaries Examination
L ol L T N

28% University or above
REHKUE

67% Below University
KRELIF

5% No Response
YA I8 JE

CIWM Final Examination

CIWM 1 # 2% 3k

100% University or above
REHP L

0% Below University

KRET

0% No Response
WA B JE

HONG KONG SECURITIES INSTITUTE
Annual Report 2011

CIIA Final Examination

CIIA Y #¢ & #% 7% Wt

83% University or above
RE L E

17% Below University
KREDTF

0% No Response
YA B JE



Enrolment By Working Field
BERFETEINFZIBMAANB TS K

Licensing Examination for Securities and Futures Intermediaries

W2 M Uk BB M

21% Securities-related

HEIRITHE
38% Non Securities-related

ERE S RS

5% Student £:/E

36% No Response
B A [

Appendix A
B &% A

Professional Diploma in Financial Markets

< il T B W 3R SO R

22% Securities-related
REH ST

55% Non Securities-related

PRI S

1% Student 24

22% No Response
B A

LE (Paper 1) in the Mainland
MR M ERESER TR ()

92% Securities-related

[ T P E S

8% Non Securities-related
R BT HATHE

0% Student £:/£

0% No Response

A ] e

LE (Papers 1, 7 and 8) in Taiwan
REEFANMBEREAERETR (BB LEEN)

40% Securities-related

[ S S

43% Non Securities-related

PR e E S

0% Student £:4:

17% No Response
A [E

Eighth PRC Securities Regulations Examination
S5O\ b R 2R T LA H

80% Securities-related

[ F P e S

0% Non Securities-related

RS

0% Student £:/£

20% No Response
B [

MPF Intermediaries Examination

[ PN

0% Securities-related

ST

80% Non Securities-related
R H BT

6% Student £2/£

14% No Response
A [E

CIWM Final Examination

CIWM Y] % % i
0% Securities-related
RS 1TE
100% Non Securities-related
FEFHE 1T

0% Student £2/£

0% No Response
R A e

CIIA Final Examination
CIIA 3] %% % 1% 2%

0% Securities-related
eS8 517

92% Non Securities-related
PR A e

0% Student Z2/E

8% No Response

AT [ g

FHW R HERG
R e T
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Appendix B
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Appendix 1

HKSI Honorary Fellows/Fellows

Mrs Laura M CHA, GBS, JP (FHKSI (Hon))
Dr Edgar WK CHENG, GBS, JP (FHKSI (Hon))
Mr Paul MY CHOW, SBS, JP (FHKSI (Hon))

Mr Gordon JONES (FHKSI (Hon))

Mr Charles YK LEE (FHKSI (Hon))

Dr LEE Quo-Wei (FHKSI (Hon))
Mr Anthony NEOH (FHKSI (Hon))
Dr AU King-lun, MH (FHKSI)
Mr Robert EJ BUNKER (FHKSI)
Mr Desmond KK CHAN (FHKSI)
Mr Henry CHAN (FHKSI)

Mr CHAN Wing-luk (FHKSI)

Ms Julia CHARLTON (FHKSI)
Dr Richard KT CHOW (FHKSI)
Mr Stephen E CLARK (FHKSI)
Mr Paul CH FAN (FHKSI)

Mr Andrew HC FUNG (FHKSI)
Mr Gerald D GREINER (FHKSI)
Miss Angelina A KWAN (FHKSI)
Mr Edward PC KWAN (FHKSI)
Dr Bill CP KWOK, JP (FHKSI)
Prof LAM Kin (FHKSI)

Dr Cynthia KL LAM (FHKSI)

Mr Baldwin KS LEE (FHKSI)
Mr Dannis JH LEE (FHKSI)

Mr Eugene KS LEE (FHKSI)

Mr Lawrence KH LEE (FHKSI)
Mr LEONG Ka Chai (FHKSI)
Mr LI Ming Kit (FHKSI)

Mr Craig B LINDSAY (FHKSI)
Mr David YT LUI (FHKSI)

Mr John M MAGUIRE (FHKSI)
Mr Anthony YT MUH (FHKSI)
Mr Gerry JY NG (FHKSI)

Mr Martin D ROGERS (FHKSI)

Mr Colin S SHAFTESLEY (FHKSI)

Mr Stewart SC SHING (FHKSI)
Ms Barbara SHIU (FHKSI)

Mr Sivagnana P SINGHAM (FHKSI)

Ms Tina SM SO (FHKSI)
Mr Michael TP SZE (FHKSI)
Mr Alec YW TSUI (FHKSI)

Mr John MM WILLIAMSON (FHKSI)

Mr Richard D WINTER (FHKSI)
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1 Ay 4+, GBS, JP (FHKSI (Hon
FHKSI (Hon
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Appendix 2

Membership Profile-Individual Members
P &% —

HHEME-WMAFR

Business Sectors

BAHMITRB WA GRYHE T 6K

Education 1% 1% Investment Advisor
HE Ecd -yl
Consultants/Legal 2% 8% Other
S 3 1 e

Corporate Finance/ 6%
Investment Banking
2R BT
Banking #2417 11%

29% Stockbroking/Futures/Derivatives
IR W T TR

Accounting/Auditing 9% 12% Asset Management

et/ B R
Regulation/Exﬂlange 5% 7% Investment Management
I 5 T gy il

Fund Management 1% 9% Wealth Management
Er sl i A R

Membership Categories

HEEBENS WA GREHEE 6

Honorary Fellows/Fellows 2%

REGHKRGE

7% Affiliate Members
Fiy s & 2

Ordinary Members 91%
A

Appendix 3

Membership Profile-Corporate Members
Bt &% =

HREME -HMgR

Business Sectors

BEHMOTESNsZHMEB G REHEE O]

6% Banking

Securities 38% AT
&5 4% IFA
T )
2% Insurance
1
Asset Management 22% = g%trlsz
A o ers
Hots
1% Acagemia
Corporate Finance 12% fifis
e 11% Futures
&

BRBEARS G
e
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HKSI Professional Events (October 2010 to September 2011)
BEHEGH(_F-FHETHE_ZF - —%N1LA)

75% Regular In-house Luncheon CPT Seminars

SEBR RO S &

16% Senior Networking Events — Local Activities
1o A8 i 1 B — A 3t 1 )

2% Senior Networking Events — Outgoing Delegations
1= JB 32 L 1 Bl — 41 I B

2% Free Members Only Event(s)
RBEFEHEZED

6% Other Events Supported bLHKSI - Senior Relationship Liaison Activities
BB S RE 2 HAL I ) — 55 i W R )

Remarks

fha vk

B Executive Roundtable Luncheons, Roundtable Luncheons, Autumn Dinner, Cocktails & Corporate Advisory Council
Dinner Meeting(s)

FTBCR SR AP > HURAPEE  ARFME > e R BBk & B o R ok

B HKSI Delegations - Thailand (April 2011)
By E -k (CR——41A)

B Business Ethics Forum & Chairman’s Dinners
E X S Sk

HONG KONG SECURITIES INSTITUTE
Annual Report 2011



Appendix D

Chairman's Dinner (October 2010 to September 2011)
EFRmE(—“E2-FETAE-F - —HN1LA)

Date
H 9

16 May 2011

e S Rkl

22 September 2011

—F-—FEfA-+_H

Principal Guest

wH

Mr Ronald J Arculli, GBM, GBS, JP

Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited
HEAEMSEE RENEE > SEiER - KPML
B G KB T A R A F

Dr Eddy C Fong, GBS, JP
Securities and Futures Commission
TIEM L SEMERE . KL
M EEEEEEA Y

b &% D

BEBEEREF
e
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Professional Education and Training (October 2010 to September 2011)
HEHBEABEINCZ-ZRETAZE_ZF-—81LA)

Pie Chart by Number of Classes
T 5N YR H @ 2r 2 T A be

HONG KONG SECURITIES INSTITUTE
Annual Report 2011

46% Continuous Professional Training

R A B B ) AR

2% Executive Workshop & Overseas Training
17BN B W& BE I i S0 55 3 AR

10% Professional Certificate Programme

B

27% In-house Training
25 ) A ER 8 Al AR

15% PRC Training
2 A 15 e
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General Enquiry — At : (852) 31206100 Examination Hotline 7% G #47 : (852) 3120 6220 Membership Hotline € Bl 2447 : (852) 3120 6170
Professional Events Hotline ~ Z£375 B #44% : (852) 3120 6172 Training Hotline PR ¢ (852) 3120 6200 Fax iR © (852) 2899 2611

Email & TH4 : info@hksi.org
Website 4441 : www.hksi.org
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